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THEME

BEYOND THE HORIZON
F

or any ex-offender determined to overcome
the odds of his/her reformation journey,
the possibilities are limitless: achieving
economic independence, cultivating valuesbased families, providing for their children’s
full education, and in their twilight years being
satisfied that they have turned around and led
enriching, meaningful lives.
Those who are newly released would find the
going tough, but ISCOS is focused in providing
the opportunities that can be turned into reality
for ex-offenders and their dependants.
Our joy knows no bounds when we see
inspiring examples of ex-offenders who have
fixed their gaze on the possibilities ahead, while
endeavouring to prevail over immediate challenges
and plodding on, knowing that there can only be
a better tomorrow. Theirs is a determined walk
that will take them well beyond that crushing dent
in their lives, when the clang of the prison gates

is but a muted blur of history. And they have in
their heads a vision that goes beyond what they
can see ahead, a vision they believe in and that
goes BEYOND THE HORIZON. They are the
group who have tapped into ISCOS’ resources
for themselves and their children, continuously
upgrading and improving themselves and taking
in inputs to further develop their capabilities. They
can be successfully reintegrated because of
invigorated determination and resilience.
Made even formidable through their support
network – unfaltering loved ones, supportive
mentors and peers, an accepting community,
an organisation like ISCOS that is unwavering
in commitment to help - ex-offenders can look
beyond today’s challenges, beyond the norm,
BEYOND THE HORIZON and see life as
promising and purposeful.
We triumph as a nation for every transformed
person and family in our midst.
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MEDIA COVERAGE
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T

he year 2012-13 was
a transition period for
ISCOS, as the helm of
leadership was changed both
at the Board of Trustees and
Board of Directors. ISCOS will
now be led by Mr Chng Hwee
Hong as the new Chairman
Board of Trustees. In addition,
ISCOS as an organisation
underwent a restructuring
with changes at the senior
management level.
The year has also been a
period of exciting progress.
We s t r e a m l i n e d e x i s t i n g
programmes and services to
3 key focal areas which are
geared to have greater impact
and benefit more ex-offenders
and their dependants.
These are: Job Placement &
Employability Training, Support
& Guidance, and Children’s
Education & Family Support.
While the first two areas
are focused on assisting the
ex-offender himself to gain
his economic independence
and to receive emotional
and other practical support,
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ISCOS CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
the last area is focused on
helping the children of the exoffender attain their academic
potential. The latter involves
an enhanced framework which
goes beyond developing the
academic ability and personal
attributes of the child/youth but
strengthening capability and
harnessing the support of the
family and providing for basic
home-study environment.
In the midst of all the
leadership changes and
strategic developments, we
have remained true to the very
reason why ISCOS exists in the
first place; to make a difference
to the lives of ex-offenders and

their families. I am happy to
report that 2012 has been a
very rewarding year, with over
2,600 ex-offenders and their
dependants benefitting from
our programmes and services.
In the area of Job Placement
& Employability Training,
ISCOS’ Skills Assistance
Subsidy Scheme (SASS)
has helped 140 ex-offenders
through skills upgrading.
Armed with a new certificate
and enhanced skills, these
ex-offenders are geared for
better employment and higher
earning prospects. SASS also
supports Soft Skills Training for
ex-inmates, covering modules

“

2012 HAS BEEN A VERY REWARDING YEAR, WITH
OVER 2,600 EX-OFFENDERS AND THEIR DEPENDANTS
BENEFITTING FROM OUR PROGRAMMES AND SERVICES.

“

MESSAGE

on Job Readiness, Effective
Stress Management and
Personal Budgeting & Saving.
On average, 256 participants
attended each module last
year and were empowered to
handle work and life pressures.
Support and Guidance
is a critical aspect for exoffenders reintegrating into the
community. Hence, I’m happy
to note that 200 ex-offenders
have been helped through
the ISCOS Support Group.
Facilitated by trained ISCOS
staff, these ex-offenders
shared reintegration issues
and found positive affirmation
and anecdotal accounts for
their reformation journey.
A total of 55 young adult exoffenders were assisted through
our Mentoring Programme.
They were assigned with
volunteer mentors who spent
their weekends visiting their
mentees 6 months before they
were released from prison,
and spent another 12 months
guiding them when they were
out in the community. Such
voluntary passion, dedication
and commitment deserve
much applause, and this group
is a sterling example of how
ISCOS volunteers make a big
difference to the lives of exoffenders.
As reintegration and
rehabilitation of ex-offenders
serve as the driving force
behind all our programmes, we
are mindful of the facts: there
were at least 9,000 local exoffenders being released in our
society each year, and a few
thousand children who have
at least one parent serving

sentence in an institution.
ISCOS endeavours to do more
for these children.
Last year, we helped 151
students who had attained a
good pass receive the Bursary
Award from a partner agency,
and 11 students were specially
selected to receive the Tuition
Bursary sponsored by a
generous law firm. In addition,
351 people participated in
family bonding events
organised by ISCOS, and 127
youths attended enrichment
and social activities aimed to
instil positive values.
ISCOS’ social impact for
the past year has been made
possible through the generosity
and support of donors, partners
and volunteers. In particular, I
extend my heartfelt thanks to
the Lee Foundation, REACH
Community Services Society,
Baker & McKenzie.Wong &
Leow, Esun International,
NETS, ExxonMobil Singapore,
Tote Board, Thomson CC MC/
IAEC, among others for their
generous giving. Every gift,
large or small, directly fuels our
work in helping to change the
lives of our ex-offenders, their
families and children.
I also wish to convey
my heartfelt thanks and
commendation to Mr Kong Mun
Kwong, ex-Chairman Board
of Trustees, my predecessor,
Andy Lim, all the retired Board
Members, and Freda Tham,
former Executive Director
(Investment), for setting the
groundwork.
In 2006 when I first
volunteered as a Member of
the ISCOS Board of Directors,

I have seen how the Cooperative has evolved, from
running social enterprises
geared to employ and train exoffenders, to providing social
services to its members, their
families and children. Much
has changed since then in
terms of programmes and
services, but the heart and
passion of the people behind
the organisation remains the
same.
I reserve my heartfelt
appreciation to my team of
Directors who has led the
way in volunteerism, and to
the management and staff for
their hard work, dedication and
commitment.

VERNON KHOO
CHAIRMAN, ISCOS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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MESSAGE FROM
DIRECTOR OF PRISONS

T

he work of rehabilitation
of the Singapore Prison
Service is somewhat
unique among all government
agencies. Only a few others
have such characteristics, that
our success depends integrally
on the co-operation of so many
other VWOs. While most
government agencies depend
to some extent on community
involvement and the role of
the public, for the Singapore
Prison Service, community
involvement and role of the
public is integral. Ex-offenders
need new friends, jobs and an
accepting community for his
successful re-integration. This
is something that we cannot
provide directly. Instead, we
work with VWOs and mobilise
the community to meet these
needs of ex-offenders.
For this reason, ISCOS is
a critical partner. Through its
various programmes in the
areas such as financial and
employment assistance and
building pro-social networks,
6

“

WE ARE JOINED TOGETHER BY THE COMMON GOAL
TO SEE THE LIVES OF EX-OFFENDERS REBUILT

ISCOS complements us and
fills gaps only VWOs can.
We are appreciative of the
collaboration in this work and
look forward to working even
closer together. Although we
are different agencies, we are
joined together by the common
goal to see the lives of exoffenders rebuilt, that they
should be rehabilitated and not
re-offend, that they should be
re-integrated back into society.
Although we are different, let us

“

aspire to work as if we are one,
towards this common mission.
May I congratulate ISCOS for
another fruitful year and extend
my best wishes for a successful
year ahead.

SOH WAI WAH
DIRECTOR OF PRISONS

MESSAGE

SCORE CHAIRMAN’S
MESSAGE

T

he year 2012 is another
testament of the strong
partnership between
SCORE and ISCOS. The Cooperative has worked very
closely with SCORE and CARE
Network members to ensure
seamless transition of inmates
from incare to aftercare,
resulting in its realignment of
programmes and services to
meet the evolving needs of
ex-offenders and their families.
In particular, both organisations
collaborate to upgrade the
skills of offenders. SCORE
focuses on skills development
at institutional/incare phase
while ISCOS follows through
on skills upgrading of exoffenders through its Skills
Assistance Subsidy Scheme
in the aftercare/community
phase. This complementary
a n d concerted appro a ch
benefits more ex-offenders and
ensure relevant skills building
and sustained employment
in the long run. Since 2010,
a total of 268 ex-offenders

have been approved to benefit
from this scheme. Given the
call by Government to tap on
local manpower source and to
increase productivity at every
level, the skill-building effort
certainly portends inclusiveness
and contributes to building
the manpower capability of
Singapore as a whole.
I am glad that ISCOS also
supports SCORE’s efforts to
help ex-offenders reintegrate
into the workforce. It offers Job
Placement services to walk-in
ex-offenders, strengthening the
reach of SCORE’s Employment
Assistance Unit (EAU) and
capitalising on its extensive
database of companies willing
to hire ex-inmates.
Through ISCOS’ cleaning
business of Mister Clean Pte
Ltd and share in the call centre
business of Connect Centre
Pte Ltd, ISCOS will continue
to provide employment
opportunities to ex-offenders.
I am thankful for the
patronage of corporate clients

in these social enterprises,
and I look forward for ISCOS
and its partners to grow these
businesses so that more
benefits can be derived for
ex-offenders and their families.
My predecessor, Mr Kong
Mun Kwong, has made
invaluable contributions to
SCORE, ISCOS and the CARE
Network. I am delighted to
continue with this work moving
ahead, and look forward to
forging closer partnerships
with ISCOS and other CARE
Network partners.
I congratulate ISCOS for
another eventful year. I am
confident that it will continue
to sketch its definitive role in
the aftercare landscape and
impact even more lives in their
journey ahead.

CHNG HWEE HONG
SCORE CHAIRMAN
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S MESSAGE

T

his year’s Annual Report
theme ‘Beyond the
Horizon’ encapsulates
ISCOS’ hope for ex-offenders: to
see beyond current issues and
look forward to a new, promising
future. It also foreshadows
the exciting developments in
the organisation of enhanced
programmes and services
for ex-offenders and their
dependants.
ISCOS’ key social services
namely Job Placement &
Employability Training, Support
& Guidance, and Children’s
Education & Family Support will

now be extended beyond the
current membership of ISCOS.
We hope to reach out to a wider
population of ex-offenders and
their children, in coordination
with Family Service Centres,
halfway houses, CARE
Network members, and other
community partners. Through
tapping the social services,
these ex-offenders can decide
to join ISCOS as members
and be assured of having an
organisation which they can
turn to in times of need, then
and in the future.
As Co-op members, they will

WE EXTEND OUR HANDS TO THOSE IN NEED,
WE OPEN OUR ARMS TO THOSE WITH THE MEANS
AND HEART TO SERVE
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enjoy membership privileges
and other value-added services
to aid them in their reintegration
journey. These initiatives
include the Gift of Hope
relief package, continuous
engagement on motivational
messages, job opportunities
and other announcements
through SMS, participation in
the ISCOS Football Club to build
their pro-social lifestyle, and
speaking opportunities through
the Motivators Programme.
It is very heartening that 972
newly-released ex-offenders
joined ISCOS as members last
year and expressed interest to
restart their lives in society with
ISCOS’ help.
Members who have made
good in society and would like
to contribute back to society
can also do so, through ISCOS.
Just as we extend our hands
to those in need, we open our
arms to those with the means
and heart to serve. Seeing
members rise above their old
self, doing well and doing good

MESSAGE

is a celebration for ISCOS and
motivation for other members.
A shining example is the ISCOS
Motivators – members who
have successfully reintegrated
into society and who have been
making tremendous impact in
the community as they share
their life stories to youths-atrisk. They have been engaged
last year at over 30 preventive
educational talks in various
schools, neighbourhood
police centres, CARE Network
events, student care service,
and halfway house for teens,
reaching out to a total of 736
audiences. We hope to engage
more successful offenders
to give back, in various ways
and facilitate their contribution
through ISCOS.
Apar t fr om he lpin g the
ex-offender himself, we are
also focused on helping the
disadvantaged children of
ex-offenders. Our vision is to
break the inter-generational
offending cycle - a daunting
but important task for the

OUR VISION IS TO BREAK THE INTER-GENERATIONAL
OFFENDING CYCLE - A DAUNTING BUT IMPORTANT TASK FOR
THE GOOD OF THE FAMILIES AND OUR SOCIETY.

good of the families and our
society. In 2012, we enhanced
the Children’s Education &
Family Support framework.
Hence, from 2013 onwards,
ISCOS will delve deeper into
the multi-faceted needs of
ex-offenders’ children through
case managers. Working
closely with volunteer mentors
in order to reach out to a
bigger pool of beneficiaries, the
team will work towards helping
them achieve their academic
potential so that they will have
a better future.

WE UPHOLD THE STRONG BELIEF
THAT EX-OFFENDERS CAN BECOME GOOD CITIZENS, WITH
GOOD VALUE SYSTEMS, AND THAT AT-RISK CHILDREN SHOULD
BE GIVEN OPPORTUNITIES TO REALISE THEIR
ACADEMIC POTENTIAL

We uphold the strong belief
that ex-offenders can become
good citizens, with good
value systems, and that atrisk children should be given
opportunities to realise their
academic potential. We will
continue to empower exoffenders to prevail against
the challenges of re-starting
anew and capitalise on second
chances given by society.
We thank all our donors,
volunteers and partners who
have stood by us and supported
us as we stay on track to make
a difference to each and every
ex-offender who comes our
way. Together, we can help our
beneficiaries envision beyond
the horizon.

PHANG SEOK SIENG
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

QUEK ENG CHYE

DESMOND CHIN
STAPHNIE TANG
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TEO TZE FANG

JENNIFER TAN

SOO ENG HIONG

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

TAN KOH YOUNG
JOY TAN

VICE CHAIRMAN

VERNON KHOO
CHAIRMAN

WONG HENG TEW

HONORARY TREASURER

LIM HONG TAN

HONORARY SECRETARY
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Chng Hwee Hong
Chairman

Lee Chiong Giam

Tan Boon Huat
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Quek Bin Hwee

Andy Lim

ISCOS TEAM

ISCOS TEAM
BACK ROW FROM LEFT:

FRONT ROW FROM LEFT:

Wilfred Goh

Vida Ortiz

Vanishree d/o Ramakrishnan 		

Cheong Lisa

Low Hock Leong

Phang Seok Sieng

Nasyrah Bee Binte Mohamed 		

Elvis Overee 				

Marcom Executive

Social Services Executive, Guidance
Assistant Manager, Accounts

Senior Social Services Executive, Children & Family

Chua Yee Hui 				
Social Services Executive, Children & Family

Effy Suhairy Ahmad 			

Social Services Executive, Training & Employment

Khor Susan 					
Assistant Executive, Accounts

Alfred Lau 					

Manager, Comms & External Relations
Deputy Director

Executive Director

Senior Manager, Programmes & Services

NOT IN PHOTO:
Radiah Binte Ismail

Assistant Executive, Member Services

Kamiso Bin Yahman
Office Services

Social Services Executive, Children & Family
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Event Highlights
CHARITY SCREENING

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The ISCOS 22nd Annual General Meeting was held on 26
May 2012 at Civil Service Club and attended by 50 members.
Then Chairman Andy Lim reported that the Co-op had
extended assistance to more than 2,000 members in 2011,
and more than 500 members’ children benefitted from the
Fairy Godparent Programme.
Mr Lim also announced his retirement as Chairman of the
Board of Directors after serving the Co-op for six years. He
named his then Vice Chairman, Mr. Vernon Khoo as successor.

Thomson Community Club
Indian Activity Executive
Committee (IAEC), led by
Chairperson Ms Prabha Seth,
organised a Charity Screening
of the movie ‘Guard Father’
on 1st July 2012. A cheque
of $10,000 was donated to
ISCOS in support of the Fairy
Godparent Programme.
The screening was graced
by Ms Indranee Rajah, MP for
Tanjong Pagar GRC. The movie
by Mr V Punithan depicted the
story of an ex-offender and his
family’s efforts in starting afresh
in society. Around 300 people
were present at the movie
screening held at Thomson
CC’s Multi-Purpose Hall.

CORPORATE RETREAT

ISCOS Board Members
and CARE Network
Secretariat had a
productive whole-day
discussion at the
ISCOS Corporate
Retreat held on 29 October 2012 at Sentosa Golf Club.
Attendees discussed the aftercare landscape and how
ISCOS can better provide programmes and services to
ex-offenders and their families.

EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

ISCOS called for an Extraordinary General
Meeting (EGM) on 18 September 2012 at
Sengkang Community Hub. Around 140
members attended the event.
Mr. Vernon Khoo addressed the members
at the EGM. Amendments to the Co-op’s by-laws were approved which would allow ISCOS to set
up a charity fund in order to support more ex-offenders and their families.
14

EVENT HIGHLIGHTS

SOCIAL ENTERPRISE ASSOCIATION CORPORATE AWARD

ISCOS’ supporters Baker & McKenzie.Wong &
Leow (BMWL) and Network for Electronic Transfers
(NETS) received special recognition from Mr Chan
Chun Sing, Acting Minister for Social and Family
Development & Senior Minister of State, Ministry
of Defence at the Social Collab 2012 organised by
Social Enterprise Association.
Held on 2 November 2012 at School of the Arts,
both firms received the SE Association Corporate
Award (Silver), for their outstanding support to social
enterprises which includes ISCOS.

SINGAPORE NATIONAL CO-OPERATIVE
FEDERATION HONOUR AWARDS

Mr. Albert Kong, former ISCOS
Honorary Secretary received the
Certificate of Honour at the Singapore
National Co-operative Federation
(SNCF) Honour Awards held on 19
January 2013 at Marina Bay Sands.
Guest of Honour Mr Lim Swee Say,
Minister, Prime Minister’s Office,
presented the accolade to Mr Kong
and 21 other award recipients for
their significant contributions to the
growth of the Singapore Co-operative
Movement.

CHARITY CAR WASH

ISCOS supported the Charity Car
Wash organised by Punggol South
Grassroots Organisations (GROs)
on 2 March 2013 held at North Vista
Primary School. A total of 12 exoffenders gave back to the community
by helping to clean vehicles to raise
funds that would aid needy students
in their school-related fees.
The event was graced by Mr Gan
Thiam Poh, Grassroots Adviser to
Pasir Ris-Punggol GROs and MP for
Pasir Ris-Punggol GRC.

BURSARY AWARD CEREMONY

A total of 248 ISCOS members’ children and other
disadvantaged kids who scored above average in their
school examinations received bursaries from REACH
Community Services Society in a ceremony held on 22
December 2012.
Mrs Josephine Teo, Minister of State, Ministry of
Finance and Ministry of Transport and MP for BishanToa Payoh GRC handed the bursaries worth a total of
$92,000 to students from primary, secondary, ITE and
JC levels, with each receiving between $300 to $500.
15

ISCOS SOCIAL SERVICES
– Extending Outreach Beyond Co-Op Membership

W

hen ISCOS was
initiated by SCORE
in 1989 under the
purview of the Ministry of Home
Affairs, the primary objective
is to provide employment for
ex-offenders through setting
up enterprises, with the belief
that steady income from
employment will help in their
reintegration. The concept of
ISCOS as an employer was
birthed with its early enterprises
in the construction, transport,
handicraft and cleaning
industries.
As early as 1994, ISCOS
extended benefits to members’
children through the distribution
of annual book grants, computer
giveaways and other back-toschool assistance, cementing
itself as one of the aftercare
agencies that looks after exoffenders’ children.

Transition to Social Services

In 2006, ISCOS started to
actively provide social services
to members and their families.
It was during this period that
16

ISCOS launched the 5 Es
– Employment, Education,
Entrepreneurship, Enrichment
and Empowerment - as
pillars for its reintegration and
rehabilitation programmes.
Several initiatives were
introduced since then: Fairy
Godparent Programme, Gift
of Hope, ISCOS Football Club,
Skills Assistance Subsidy
Scheme and SMS Project,

among others. These initiatives
were launched through the kind
support of generous donors
and were extended to ISCOS
members and their families.

ISCOS Key Focal Areas
– New Framework

In 2012, the ISCOS Board
envisioned an even greater
outreach of ex-offenders that
goes beyond its membership

SOCIAL SERVICES

pool, prompting the management
to relook its existing programmes
and services in order to evaluate
how it can extend to more
beneficiaries.
Three key Focal Areas were
then identified and will be
implemented in 2013, two
of which will benefit any exoffender, whether ISCOS
member or non-member.
These are: Job Placement &
Employability Training and
Support & Guidance. The
3rd focal area - Children’s
Education & Family Support focuses on the dependants of
ex-offenders.
The first focal area
reflects three of the 5 Es
(Employment, Education and
Entrepreneurship), as they aim
to achieve the same outcome:
help ex-offenders sustain
themselves in the community.
The two other Es (Enrichment
and Empowerment) are evident
in all other programmes and
services.

continuity of the offender’s
training in the aftercare phase,
as charted.
While ISCOS supports exoffenders through job referrals,
it will continue to build the
skills level of ex-offenders
particularly in trade skills, soft
skills and entrepreneurship.

The Skills Assistance Subsidy
Scheme (SASS) remains as
the flagship programme under
Employability Training. Through
this scheme, ex-offenders have
the opportunity to acquire
the necessary skills in order
to increase their chances of
securing employment. Those

ISCOS FOCAL AREAS
MISSION
To promote self-esteem and economic
independence in ex-offenders while guiding them towards
good citizenship and good value systems..”

FOCAL AREA
Job Placement &
Employability Training

Job Placements
Trade Skills Training
Soft Skills Training
Entrepreneurship
Training

Support & Guidance

Mentoring
Enhanced Walk-In
Engagement
Support Group

Opportunities for
Complete Education
& Enhancing Family
Support

Student Development
Family Support
Home Environment

EX-OFFENDER

Focal Area 1: Job Placement &
Employability Training

Securing employment is one
of the top reintegration needs
of any ex-offender. In the area
of Job Placement, ISCOS
works closely with SCORE in
order to broaden employment
opportunities for ex-offenders.
ISCOS taps on SCORE’s job
portal with its extensive job
vacancies for ex-offenders
and facilitate job matching for
those who seek assistance
from ISCOS. Similarly, through
sharing of information on
inmates’ training roadmap by
SCORE, ISCOS can consider

DEPENDANTS

SERVICES

MEMBER ONLY Member Services

Gift of Hope
SMS
Motivators
Interest Groups
(Football Club,
RUNFREE Club, etc)
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who are in low-paying jobs
can also raise their earning
potential as their skills level is
upgraded.

Focal Area 2: Support & Guidance

While ex-offenders are
prepared few months before
they complete their sentences
through pre-release schemes,
it is crucial that Support and
Guidance in the community is
established to facilitate faster
reintegration into society.
The ISCOS Support
Group serves as a platform
for ex-offenders to receive
both emotional and practical
support. It is an avenue for exoffenders to exchange positive
ideas in resolving problems
and learning new techniques
and information to assist in
their reintegration into society.
The ISCOS Mentoring
Programme, on the other hand,
aims to sustain rehabilitation
and minimise re-offending of
young adult ex-offenders as
they are matched to mentors.
These mentors are involved
from incare phase (letter
writing and face-to-face prison
visits) to aftercare (community
mentoring). As caring role
models, mentors spark new
hopes in their mentees by
encouraging them to pursue
academic or vocational
pursuits.
In order to address other
needs of ex-offenders in the
community, ISCOS introduces
t h e E n h a n c e d Wa l k - I n
Engagement. Ex-offenders
who seek assistance from
ISCOS will be engaged by
staff to help identify relevant
18

“

EX-OFFENDERS HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO
ACQUIRE THE NECESSARY SKILLS IN ORDER TO INCREASE
THEIR CHANCES OF SECURING EMPLOYMENT

programmes that will tackle
their needs, be it under ISCOS
or other partner agencies.

Focal Area 3: Children’s Education &
Family Support

While help is extended to the
ex-offender population, ISCOS
will also focus extensively on
providing assistance to children
of ex-offenders in order to
help break intergenerational
offending cycle.
We envision the younger
generation to achieve their
academic potential so that in
the long run, they will become
financially independent,
socially re s p o n s ib le a n d
contributing members of the
family,community and society.
In previous years, ISCOS
under its Fairy Godparent
Programme (FGP) provide
educational incentives and
mentoring support to its
members’ children, and
organises enrichment activities
and family events. However,
these activities are done on
stand-alone basis.
Starting 2013, we will introduce
the ISCOS Children’s Education
& Family Support Programme
(ICFP) under a holistic
framework. ICFP comprises
3 components: Student

“

Development, Family Support
and Home Environment. Within
each component, we have
activities that seek to strengthen
protective factors and reduce
risk factors in that particular
domain.
Under
“Student
Development”, the focus is on
the child. There are 2 anchor
activities under this component:
Tuition Bursary and Bursary
Award. The award scheme
is coupled with a mentoring
scheme for identified students,
with Case Managers having
oversight of these cases. The
Tuition Bursary cum Mentoring
offers sponsored professional
tuition (small class size of 3-4) for
“high needs” children while the
Bursary cum Mentoring targets
children with above average
results, who are of “mediumhigh” needs. Both activities aim
to enhance the studying ability
and academic achievement of
the child while improving their
self-confidence level.
Under “Family Support”,
we will boost family stability
through job provision and other
support for the parents so
that the family can take care
and support their children.
We will also address other
protective factors such as

SOCIAL SERVICES

Children’s Education and Family Support Framework
Achieve Academic Potential
FAMILY SUPPORT

STUDENT DEVELOPMENT

HOME ENVIRONMENT

Build capacity in
Parenting
Training/coaching on
parenting
Assist & advise on
peer & neighbourhood
issues

Enhance Academic
Achievement
Sponsorship for tuition
Reward for academic
achievement
Training/coaching on
study skills

Create study
environment
Facilitate set-up of
study corner

Build Family
Relationships
Conduct family
workshops & activities

Build character &
confidence
Mentoring
Training/coaching on
soft skills

Assist to stabilise
parents & family
Provide employment,
skills & other
assistance

Provide for well-being
Recreational outings
Interest group activities

poor parenting behaviours,
poor family relationships and
communication, through our
various parenting and family
workshops, parent-child
workshops, family day event
and family bonding activities
held throughout the year.
Under “Home Environment”,
the main thrust is to facilitate
the set-up of a proper study
corner for the children in their
homes through the provision of

proper chairs, tables or lamps,
so as to create a consistent and
conducive study setting for the
children. Parents will also be
educated and assisted on other
aspects of the home that impair
their child’s studying capacity.
For instance, distractions in the
home, educating and creating
an awareness of community
influences (good and bad)
and resources available in the
neighbourhood.

Assist & advise other
aspects of home
environment

Member Services

ISCOS Members will continue
to enjoy other privileges and
value-added services such as
the receipt of Gift of Hope initial
relief packages, inclusion in
SMS database for job alerts,
motivational messages and
other useful announcements,
and participation in ISCOS’
recreational and interest
groups such as the ISCOS
Football Club.
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PROMOTING SUSTAINABLE INCOME
through Job Placement and Skills Training

A

steady income stream is one of the key
needs of ex-offenders returning to the
community. Outside prison wall, they
face the immediate need to support themselves
and contribute to their household expenses.
Ex-offenders in general have low educational
qualifications and lack the relevant skills to thrive
in a competitive job market. They also face social
stigma due to their incarceration records.
Thankfully, assistance is readily available for
those who are determined to overcome these
obstacles.

Employment Assistance
Applications 2012
Referred
for jobs
259

Job Placement

Through ISCOS’ Job Placement services, exoffenders are referred to supportive employers
who are willing to give them a new lease at life.
In 2012, a total of 259 out of 261 ex-offenders
who sought assistance from ISCOS were
referred to jobs, with 104 of them successfully
hired by accommodating companies like The
Weekender, PinCorp Pte Ltd, Hock Lam Beef
Restaurants, and others.
One beneficiary shared: “I’m thankful that I can
now earn a decent living and support my family.”

Trade Skills Training

ISCOS, through the Skills Assistance Subsidy
Scheme (SASS), continues to build the
capabilities of reformed offenders who lack the
relevant skills needed to secure employment or
upgrade to better paying jobs. Since 2010, this
scheme sponsored by the Lee Foundation has
been making tremendous impact on many lives.
Under SASS, ex-offenders who want to
increase their chances of getting hired or hope
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Successfully
Placed
104

Unplaced
155

Not Referred for Jobs - 2

to secure better paying jobs but lack the financial
means to do so can avail of special subsidies from
ISCOS, up to a maximum of $600. For example,
successful applicants need only pay $50 for
courses with fees $350 and below, or pay $100
for courses with fees between $351 and $700.

COURSE FEES

SUBSIDIES

$350 or lesser

Up to $300

Between $351 and $700

Up to $600

Above $700

$600

SOCIAL SERVICES

“We see an encouraging trend of ex-offenders
coming to ISCOS to apply for this scheme. They
are determined to enhance their skills so that
they can better support themselves and their
families,” said Effy, ISCOS Social Services
Executive (Training & Employment).
Last year, 143 applicants successfully obtained
subsidies of their chosen courses in industries like
logistics, safety and supervision, transport and F&B.

Total
Applications

Total
Approved

Total
Completed

No. Undergoing
Course / Pending
Payment

Drop out
Cases

Jan – Mar

51

23

13

0

10

Apr – June

67

34

22

3

9

Jul - Sep

87

60

31

20

9

Oct – Dec

65

26

6

20

0

Total

270

143

72

43

28

53% of Total
Applications

50% of
Approved
Cases

Month

Percentage

30% of Approved
20 % of
Cases
Approved Cases

Number of Applications in 2012
Targeted Number of Approvals in 2012
Number of Approvals in 2012

270
120
143

Entrepreneurship Training

While employment is often the path taken by
ex-offenders to be self-sustaining, there are
those who, by sheer guts and with some training,
become self-made entrepreneurs. ISCOS
nurtures ex-offenders with entrepreneurial
spirit by giving them opportunities to attend
Entrepreneurship Training at subsidised rates.
Last year, ISCOS, through one of its service
providers, Princeton Mind, had completed a series
of training for 11 budding entrepreneurs. The
participants were supported by the course mentors
to secure loans for their business start-up.
Mr Balakumuran, one of the graduates of the
training is now operating an Indian food stall at

Wcega Plaza while Mr Zulkhairee is preparing
to set up his own Malay food stall near Aljunied
MRT Station.

Soft Skills Training

While it is highly essential to train ex-offenders
on trade skills, it is also vital to train them on
personal skills, so that they can sustain their
employment, enhance their job performance and
ensure personal and career success.
ISCOS, through its partner training provider,
Institute for Career Development, conducts
soft skills training for ex-offenders. The course
- Being Prepared for Work and Budgeting – is
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Jan - Mar

88

61

Apr - Jun

58

Effective
Personal
Budgeting and
Saving

91
80
85

Job Readiness

44

Jul - Sep

31
41

Effective Stress
Management

69
54
66

Oct - Dec

KPI for 2012
231
256

Total 2012

281

Targeted Number of Participants for each Module: 250

0

50

100

150

made up of three modules which coaches exoffenders on job interview preparations as well
as adoption of the right mindset towards work
demands and expectations. The course will also
teach ex-offenders proper income management
and will help them understand stress better when
dealing with the many challenges and demands
of life and work.

200

250

300

In 2012, an average of 256 participants per
module have attended these trainings conducted
in Halfway Houses and Prisons Institutions.
The road to economic independence is
challenging for ex-offenders. ISCOS will continue
to open doors of opportunities in employment,
entrepreneurship and skills upgrading for those
who need help and are determined to change.

Messages from SASS beneficiaries:
“There was an increase in my pay of $100 upon completion of my course. I also gained trust from the company.”
– Mr Mustaffa Bin Abdul Majid
“SASS definitely helped me as there was an increase in job scope and an increase in pay.” – Mr Khoo Kiam Hong
“There was an increase in pay.” –Mr Md Rizal B. Omar and Mr Muhammad Ryan Riza Bin Muhammad Ridha Abdullah Ho
“SASS scheme has been very helpful to me as it relieved me from the financial problem.” – Mr Abd Latif Abd Hamid
“There was an increase in pay and the work environment has become better.” – Mr Yahya B. Shamsuri
“Working has become a lot better due to the license (forklift) and I felt more peaceful, being able to drive anywhere.”
– Mr Supaya Vijiyan
“The company I work for continues to support me and motivate me to upgrade myself.” – Mr Mega Abdul Rahman Bin Ali
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SUPPORT & GUIDANCE

ENABLING COMMUNITY SUPPORT

and Continuous Guidance

T

ransition from prison
to the society can be
a daunting challenge,
in which many offenders are
ill-equipped to tackle. Some of
them are woefully unprepared
for re-entry into society as they
do not have family or friendly
support, no firm plans for
shelter and are not confident
of securing or holding down a
job given their low educational
level and lack of employment
experience. Those who have
been incarcerated for more
than one year or have a history
of being in and out of prison,
generally face more obstacles
and issues.

After a significant period of
being locked away, they lose
touch and can face difficulties
adjusting to family, work and
functioning as a free member in
society. Therefore, it is vital to
provide immediate support and

IT IS VITAL TO PROVIDE IMMEDIATE SUPPORT AND
GUIDANCE FOR NEWLY-RELEASED EX-OFFENDERS

guidance for newly-released
ex-offenders to ease their
mental burden and rebuild their
confidence.

Support Group

ISCOS initiated the Support
Group in August 2011, aiming to
provide emotional and practical
support to ex-offenders though
group sharing sessions.
Participants exchange positive
ideas about resolving problems
or learn new techniques and
information to aid in their
reintegration.
In a group setting facilitated
by reformed ex-offenders and
staff and attended by their own
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peers, they can freely share
their innermost insecurities and
anxieties, exchange ideas and
seek inputs on their problems
instead of handling them alone.
In 2012, a total of 201
beneficiaries including youth
offenders have participated in the
sessions which cover a series of
topics such as coping strategies,
family, fear and motivation, control
and trust.

The Support Group sessions
are run by a group of trained
volunteers as well as successful
ex-offenders, apart from staff.
A total of 37 volunteers were
trained last year.

Mentoring of Youth Offenders

Launched concurrently with
Support Group, ISCOS
Mentoring Programme for
youth offenders is in its third

THE OBJECTIVE IS TO CONNECT THE YOUTH
OFFENDERS WITH VOLUNTEER MENTORS WHO CAN
SUPPORT AND ENCOURAGE THE MENTEE WITH A VIEW
TO MINIMISE RE-OFFENDING
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year. The objective is to
connect the youth offenders
with volunteer mentors who
can support and encourage the
mentee with a view to minimise
re-offending.
The rehabilitation and
reintegration process begins
about six months before the
youth offenders are released
from prison whereby mentors
will start to build up rapport via
letter writing and face-to-face
visits.
As part of the programme,
the aftercare phase will involve
monthly engagement session
between mentors and mentees
for a period of about 12 months,
corresponding to the period
when the mentee undergoes
his formal supervision under
the Prison Authority. In 2012, a
total of 36 youth offenders had
benefitted from the programme
under the guidance of trained
mentors.

CHILDREN & FAMILY

SUPPORTING CHILDREN’S EDUCATION

and Building Stronger Family Knits

S

trong family support plays a
very big influence in helping
ex-offenders re-establish
themselves in the community. We
observe that ISCOS members with
strong family ties and those who
assume responsible spousal and/
or parental roles after incarceration
have higher post-release success
and outcomes. Thus, ISCOS
organises family bonding activities
geared to strengthen family knits.
As we look into the family unit,
there is also the concern on intergenerational offending cycle. A
local study conducted in 2007
reveals that children of incarcerated
fathers are 8 times more likely to
offend than the rate of the general
population. ISCOS believes that
early intervention must be done
for these at-risk youths especially
in the area of education.
Through the kind support of
various partners, ISCOS was
able to support families of exoffenders through meaningful
initiatives that strengthen family
ties and help children achieve
their academic potential and
learn positive values.

Bursary Award

REACH Community Services Society (RCSS) partnered again
with ISCOS in 2012 to award bursaries ranging from $300
to $500 to 151 ISCOS members’ children from low-income
families. The academic reward was given to the students for
their achievement in attaining above average results in their
final examination.
A total of $56,700 worth of bursaries was distributed to
ISCOS members’ children at a ceremony attended by Mrs
Josephine Teo, Minister of State, Ministry of Finance and
Ministry of Transport and MP for Bishan-Toa Payoh GRC
at Guangyang Secondary School.
Identified recipients were assigned volunteer mentors
for one year whom we had entrusted to spark new
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bonds, motivate, encourage and guide
the students. An outing was organised at
Punggol Outward Bound Singapore with the
goal of building rapport between mentors
and mentees.
To further support the families of the
bursary award recipients, over 100 food
hampers were distributed under Project
Neighbour, a community outreach project by
Grace Assembly of God and RCSS.

Tuition Bursary

The Tuition Bursary initiative which was
sponsored by Baker & McKenzie.Wong &
Leow since 2011 has helped 11 speciallyselected students in 2012 who were not doing
well in their English and / or Math subjects.
The recipients underwent professional tuition
in these subjects for one full year.
The outcome: 6 out of the 11 beneficiaries
showed improvement in both subjects or one
subject tutored. The rest will require further
educational assistance as they had not
shown the targeted improvements.
The law firm had shown keen commitment
and patience to help in a holistic manner.
Its lawyers and staff are engaged to mentor
the recipients and inspire them to do better
in school, with some help from fun, bonding
activities of prawning and bowling.
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Other Educational Incentives / Enrichment Activities

To inculcate positive values among its
members’ children, ISCOS organised enrichment
and social activities last year which benefitted
136 youths.
An educational overnight Children’s Camp
for 35 youths was held at Underwater World
Singapore supported by law firm BMWL. The
programme called ‘Living In The Ocean’ was an
enriching experience as participants learn more
about marine life.
ISCOS conducted a Life Skills Workshop
which helped 9 specially-selected students in
the area of boosting their self-esteem, resilient
attitude, resourcefulness and memory skills.
The Reading Programme for Art’s Children
saw 28 students being exposed to the wonders
of art. It was organised in collaboration with the
Gift of Reading Volunteer Group and Singapore
Art Museum.
Some 17 youths attended a series of basic
photography workshop organised by Photovoice
SG which ignited their creativity and helped build
their self-confidence.
M1 sponsored a movie outing attended by
29 beneficiaries from ISCOS during the school
holidays while 18 kids from ISCOS attended
the aRWSome Kids’ Date organised by Resorts
World Sentosa.

CHILDREN & FAMILY

ISCOS Family Big Day Out

The ISCOS Family Big Day Out
was held in collaboration with
Singapore National Co-operative
Federation’s (SNCF) Coopaliciouz, a family day initiative
with President Tony Tan Keng
Yam as the Guest of Honour.

Supported by BGC Group,
over 400 people attended
the event comprising
ISCOS members and their
families, volunteers and staff.
Participants energetically
joined in Co-opaliciouz Fun

Walk from Indoor Stadium to
Marina Barrage, where SNCF
hosted various Co-operatives’
exhibits, food fair, mass
reading, and mass song and
dance. The event culminated
in a dazzling fireworks display.

Other Family Bonding Activities

Aimed at fostering relationships within
the families of ex-offenders, Our Giving
Hearts, a local volunteer group, organised
the FUNtastic Race at Gardens by the Bay.
It was attended by a total of 59 ISCOS
members and their kids.
Some 55 participants from 11 families took
part in the Sandcastle Building Workshop at
East Coast Park, which encouraged family
bonding, challenged attendees’ creative
minds and inculcated the spirit of teamwork.
Around 33 ISCOS members and their
families walked for fun and good cause at
the highly successful NTUC FairPrice Walk
for Rice @ South East.
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ISCOS MOTIVATORS
– Giving Back to Society

I

n recent years, it is evident
that the public has been
receptive to ex-offenders
who wish to turn over a new leaf,
thanks to the concerted effort
of CARE Network partners.
This is due primarily to the
active engagement of various
sectors in the community for the
reintegration and rehabilitation
of ex-offenders.
Ex-offenders are given second
chances by the society through
job opportunities, financial and
social support, and assistance
to their families and children.
While ex-offenders regain
their foothold in society, many
of them contribute back to
the community to show their
appreciation for the chances
given to them.
One of such groups is the
ISCOS Motivators, or reformed
offenders who are doing well in
the society. Started by ISCOS
in 2010, these Motivators
give back to the community
by participating in preventive
education talks and various
speaking engagements.
In 2012, ISCOS Motivators
reached out to over 700 youths
at-risk. They were involved in
34 sharing sessions at different
venues such as secondary
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schools, Neighbourhood Police
Centres and Student Care
Services Centres. In the same
year, the ISCOS Motivators pool
was expanded to include 19
new members who underwent
training in public speaking.
As they share their life
experiences, these exoffenders reinforce in
themselves the commitment
to stay on the right path while
actively rallying others to stay
away from negative influences.
To date, there are a total of 11
active Motivators in ISCOS.

Samuel Kumar

Samuel, 49, is one of the most
admired Motivators in ISCOS.
Behind the kind demeanor
and soft-spoken nature of this
man is a colourful life story of
someone who has been in and

out of prison for many years
due to drug-related offences.
Samuel counts his
rehabilitation journey by the
days, as he often explains that
staying drug-free is a daily
victory. He is very supportive
of deterring youths from taking
the wrong path and he wants
to play an active role in this
area. He believes that juvenile
delinquency can be curbed
if preventive education is
imparted at the early stage.
Aside from participating in
speaking engagements and
other volunteering work in
ISCOS, Samuel is busy with
his own moving company which
employs only ex-offenders.
He is also the Centre Director
of Christian Care Services, a
care-provider for ex-offenders
and recovering drug addicts.

ISCOS FC

ISCOS FOOTBALL CLUB
Reintegrating through Sports

B

ased on the Risk, Needs and Responsivity
Model, which is the widely accepted model
for the assessment and rehabilitation of
ex-offenders, there are seven major risk/need
factors which are to be considered for one to be
effective in assessment and rehabilitation. One
of these factors is the lack of involvement in prosocial recreational or leisure activities.
ISCOS encourages pro-social lifestyle
through sports and recreation and these help
ex-offenders regain their footing in society.
In addition, through common interests, exoffenders mingle with other volunteers and
participants in the community, thus facilitating
the reintegration process.
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ISCOS Football Club

Since 2008, ISCOS FC has been helping many ex-offenders
play this well-loved sport as part of promoting pro-social
lifestyle. With 24-strong members comprising ex-offenders and
volunteer players, the team trained for more than 40 sessions
in 2012, 18 of which were friendly matches with other clubs and
corporations. It reached the quarter-finals of the Vesakhi Mela
2012 (Open Category) and emerged as the 1st Runner-up in
Street Ball Gala 2012 (Under 21).
Over the years, the club has done ISCOS proud for its
encouraging winnings. Registered under the Football Association
of Singapore, it is currently playing in the ESPZEN League, which
runs from December 2012 to May 2013. The goal is to qualify for
the Island-wide League, a pre-qualifying amateur league leading
up to the National Football League.
Aside from learning football tactics and skills, members get
to build up their self-esteem, discipline and teamwork through
weekly trainings. Outside the field, the teammates and volunteers
constantly inspire each other, moulding them to be stronger in
overcoming hurdles in life.
“I am contented with the team performance especially their
attitude towards every game. It is evident that some of the players
have improved in terms of their temper and discipline. For me, this
is so much worthwhile compared to the scores,” said Volunteer
Team Manager Prem.

ISCOS FC Winnings:
Street Ball Gala 2012
(Under 21)
– 1st Runner-Up
Vesakhi Mela 2012
(Open Category) –
reached quarter-finals
Sun League 2010/11
– Champion
ISCOS Futsal
Challenge 2011
– 1st Runner-up
Fair Play Challenge
League 2010
– Champion
Fair Play Challenge
Cup 2010
– 2nd Place
Dr Maliki’s Cup 2009
– Champion
Mitra League
9-a-side 2009
– Runner-up
ESPZEN Corporate
Cub 2009
– Semi-finals
SACA Soccer
Competition 2008
– Champion
YRP Futsal
Competition 2008
– 2nd Place
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MEMBER SERVICES

Privileges and
Value-Added
Services
In recent years, ISCOS sees an average
of 1,000 ex-offenders who join ISCOS as
members. As Co-op members, they can tap
on programmes and services, open to all exoffenders as well as members-only services to
aid in their reintegration journey.

Membership privileges include receiving an initial
relief package called the Gift of Hope, inclusion
in SMS database for job alerts, inspirational
messages and other important announcements,
and participation in recreation and interest groups
such as the ISCOS Football Club.
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Gift of Hope

One of the exclusive benefits for members is
the Gift of Hope (GOH), an initial relief package
which aims to help ex-offenders tide through the
first few days upon release from prison. It also
serves as a welcome gift as these new members
rejoin the community.
Since 2008, ISCOS has distributed close
to 3,600 GOH packages amounting to nearly
$180,000. The package now contains sponsored
NETS FlashPay CEPAS Card with stored value,
food and grocery vouchers and other items worth
more than $50 in total. Last year alone, 896 new
members benefitted from this initiative.

SMS Project

The SMS Project is another value-added service
by ISCOS, which was initiated in January
2010 through the generous funding of the Lee
Foundation. It aims to inspire, encourage and
motivate ISCOS’ members through weekly
inspirational quotes and messages. As of end
2012, a total of 3,375 subscribers are listed
under the SMS database.
The SMS Project is also an effective platform
to share latest updates about ISCOS activities,
events and job opportunities for members. It was
further enhanced in 2011 when members could
capture healthcare tips and general knowledge
through a series of trivia quizzes, supported by
Secret Recipe and Laksania.
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Says Mr Elvis Overee, ISCOS Senior Manager,
Programmes & Services, “The weekly messages
go beyond its traditional use of providing
relevant updates and information but serve as a
reassuring note and helpline for our members.”

Other Member Privileges

ISCOS also encourages new members to
join recreational and interest groups such as
the ISCOS Football Club (IFC). Through IFC,
member players expand their positive peer
groups, develop a healthy lifestyle and learn
positive attributes such as teamwork, discipline
and perseverance. In 2013, ISCOS plans to
recruit a few more volunteer players who can
be role models, friends or mentors into the IFC.
ISCOS also engages its members to join the
ISCOS Motivators Programme and contribute
back to society. In 2012, the Motivators,
successfully reintegrated members, shared
their experiences through 34 sessions of public
talks for at-risk youths and as ambassadors of
second chances. In sharing their story on their
incarceration and how they have picked up
thereafter, they also reinforce their commitment
to change and stay on track.
By putting our members at the core of the
Co-op’s existence, the road to ex-offenders’
reintegration and rehabilitation will end in many
successes.

VOLUNTEER ENGAGEMENT

ENGAGING VOLUNTEERS
Through Impactful Contributions

M

other Teresa once
said, “If you can’t feed
a hundred people,
then feed just one.” This quote
also embodies the essence
of being an ISCOS volunteer.
We uphold the belief that every
effort put in by our volunteers
matters and each effort, big
or small, contributes towards
ex-offenders’ reintegration
and rehabilitation. In 2012, a
total of 2,266 man-hours were
clocked in by volunteers for
different events, programmes
and services.

In 2012, a total of 201 people
were groomed to take on
key roles, including those of
support group co-facilitators
and mentors for young adult
ex-offenders and children of exoffenders respectively.
For longer serving volunteers,
ISCOS has slated them for
development training to further

develop their volunteering
skills. We recruit volunteers
all year round mainly to meet
the demand of our long-term
volunteer-intensive projects.

Appreciating Volunteers and Partners

ISCOS organised its annual
Appreciation Dinner on 19
October 2012, attended

Developing Volunteers

ISCOS works closely with
its volunteers in driving the
programmes and events for
our beneficiaries. As such,
ensuring the sustainability and
growth of the volunteer pool is
crucial. Basic and advanced
training courses are available
for volunteers to equip them
with the necessary skills and
mindsets to carry out the
specific assignment.
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by about 100 guests and
comprising key volunteers,
donors and partners.
A total of 27 volunteers were
awarded the Certificate of
Tribute for dedicated service
of more than one year in
ISCOS. Eight volunteers who
contributed three years of
service were recognised with
the Bronze Tribute Award.
Outstanding Contribution
Awards went to Ian Mullane and

Tarani Premchand Deepchand.
ISCOS also took the
opportunity to appreciate its
key programme and event
sponsors for their significant
contributions in 2012. These
donors included: the Lee
Foundation, Baker & Mckenzie
Wong & Leow, BGC Group Pte
Ltd, Photovoice SG, Network for
Electronic Transfer (Singapore)
Pte Ltd and Thomsom CC MC
& IAEC.

7 VOLUNTEERS WERE AWARDED THE CERTIFICATE
OF TRIBUTE FOR DEDICATED SERVICE OF MORE THAN ONE
YEAR IN ISCOS
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‘Friends of ISCOS’, or
companies and individuals
who donated a significant sum
in support of our programmes
and services in 2012 were
also recognized. They are:
Esun International Pte Ltd
and Institute for Career
Development.
Va r i o u s d o n o r s h a v e
contributed to make the
event memorable: 77th
Street, Asiawide Franchise
Consultants, Epi Treatz, Food
Empire, iFly Singapore, JIG
Global, Kazbar, Mandarin
Oriental Singapore, Mr Alvin
Goh, Mr SC Kan, Picotin,
Seagate, Spaboutique and
Underwater World Singapore.
All guests enjoyed a
sumptuous dinner, serenaded

VOLUNTEER ENGAGEMENT

by the Performing Arts Centre
(PAC) Band. Jazzed up by the
Masquerade theme, the night
was complemented with special
games and lucky draws.

Key Volunteering Opportunities

ISCOS is deeply grateful to all
volunteers who had supported
our cause and has plans to
engage more as it progresses
f o r w a r d . We o ff e r m a n y
opportunities for people who

Mentors for Students

are keen to lend a helping hand:
Mentors for Students, Mentors
for young adult ex-offenders,
Interest Group Volunteers and
Volunteers with Expertise. It only
takes a few hours and a willing
heart to make a difference to
others. Volunteers may also
gain satisfaction, meaning and
invaluable life experiences in
their endeavours.
As Daryl, one of our volunteer
photographer shares: “It has

been a pleasure to assist
ISCOS in any way possible.
I believe that the best gift for
anyone would be the gift of
forgiveness and the chance
to start anew. All of us make
mistakes, some minor but some
severe. ISCOS has been very
helpful in assisting the members
in many ways to integrate back
to society and I would like to
continue to give my time and
energy for this cause.”

Befriend and encourage the students (age 9-17) to achieve
their academic potential and assist to meet their social needs.

Mentors for Young
Adult Ex-offenders

Engage and guide young adult ex-offenders along their
transition from prison to the society and as they conform to
supervision requirements in society.

Interest Group
Volunteers

Promote positive values and inspire ISCOS Football Club
players. Be a volunteer player or part of the Management
Team.

Expertise Volunteers

Contribute talent, skills and other expertise through meaningful
projects or events. (E.g. IT Specialists, Designers, project
skills, Designers, Photographers, Videographers, Copywriters,
Trainers and others)
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VOLUNTEER

- AN AGENT OF CHANGE

L

ess than two years of
volunteering in ISCOS
and Prem has already
left positive imprints on people’s
lives.
We tip our hats off to this
unassuming IT Manager at
Institute of Molecular and Cell
Biology (IMCB), A*STAR,
husband, and son to an aged
mother who never fails to
impress us with his dedication
and passion to serve others.
Juggling work and family
responsibilities, he is a shining
example of what it takes to be
an agent of change.
“I always believed in
‘kampong-style’ living where
every member of the community
shares and helps each other
out. You really cannot change
others without being a change
agent yourself,” said Prem.
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He initially served as a CoFacilitator in ISCOS Support
Group in October 2011, listening
to ex-offenders share their life
experiences and struggles in
reintegration, then guiding them
to finding positive affirmations
amongst each other. This was
no small undertaking, as he
was involved in twice a month
sessions, held after regular
working hours.
“I feel for them and empathise
with them on their issues.
Instead of going to their old
kakis (friends), it helps that
ex-offenders have a safe place
to share their struggles with,”
shared Prem.
Wanting to take his volunteering
to the next level, he signed up
for the Mentoring Programme
afterwards, a one and a half
year programme which involves
letter writing and prison visits
to his mentee, leading up to
continuous mentoring when his
mentee was released into the
community.
“There is no greater
satisfaction than to be able to
help someone change for the
better and find determination
to stay on the right path,” he
enthused.

An avid soccer fan, Prem
took special interest in the
ISCOS Football Club. Now
serving as the team’s manager,
he regularly meets with the
players and other ISCOS FC
volunteers for practice, friendly
games or local competitions.
It has not been easy managing
different personalities in the
team. “Even though there
were challenging moments,
we learned to accept each
other’s differences and exercise
tolerance which was really
comforting,” Prem added.
He helps to identify other
reintegration needs of the exoffender players so that ISCOS
can assist further.
Prem was conferred the
Outstanding Contribution Award
at the ISCOS Appreciation
Dinner 2012, a recognition of his
laudable impact and indomitable
spirit in volunteerism.
“My volunteering journey
in ISCOS was very fruitful
and fulfilling. I have grown
a lot as a person. There is
more to life than just making
a living and attending to one’s
responsibilities. It’s through
volunteering that one can find
deeper personal satisfaction.”

FEATURE

MEMBER
- STARTING ANEW
F

and emotional support. At the support
group, he was comforted by the sharing
among his peers, who themselves were in
the same boat as him and trying to turn their
lives around.
In April 2012, Mazlan took the Building
Construction Supervisors Safety Course
under the ISCOS Skills Assistance Subsidy
Scheme (SASS). Following his completion of
the course, he saw a $300 increase in salary
as he moved from event management into
building and construction industry. He was
grateful for the opportunity to upgrade and
improve his career prospects.
One ambitious dream that often crosses
his mind is to own a halfway house so that
he can help other ex-offenders by providing
a friendly shelter and upgrading their skills.
“I want to be successful and inspire other
people to lead a brighter life. My goal is clear
and I am striving towards it,” said Mazlan.
Currently undergoing a certificate in
Workplace Safety and Health, Mazlan is
determined to advance his career for a
better life. “I am constantly aware of my past
mistake and conscious of what I am doing so
that I do not fall into the same trap,” he said.
With such self-awareness and
determination to carve out a brighter future,
we believe that Mazlan is on track to achieve
his bigger goal and contribute back to the
community.

or most people hitting 40 years old, they
would have been established in their
career and settled down. But for Mazlan,
aged 47 years, he started his life of normalcy
just a few years ago. From the age of 18 till his
early 40s, Mazlan had been in and out of prison,
throwing away a good 15 years since he was first
caught up by the law for a drug-related offence.
Mazlan was brought up by his relative when
his mother passed away during his infancy.
Being separated from his father and two elder
brothers since young, he gradually found solace
among his gang of friends. Influenced by bad
company, he committed offences such as
drug abuse and shoplifting. The early years of
imprisonment did not deter him.
In the later years and through religious
support and motivational books, he gained
strength and courage to start anew. “Having
served so many years inside the prison, I finally
made up my mind to turn my life around and I
know it is never too late for me,” said Mazlan.
In 2011, he learnt about ISCOS through a
recruitment talk inside prison and immediately
signed up as a member. When he was released
at 45, he realised he could not
keep pace with the changes that
had swept through the society he
I WANT TO BE SUCCESSFUL AND INSPIRE OTHER
knew and be on his own.
However, this did not dampen
PEOPLE TO LEAD A BRIGHTER LIFE. MY GOAL IS CLEAR
his desire to change for the
AND I AM STRIVING TOWARDS IT
better. Mazlan joined the ISCOS
Support Group to seek practical
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SPONSOR: FORGING LONG-TERM PARTNERSHIP

W

ell-meaning
companies either take
the route of corporate
philanthropy or corporate
volunteerism in their bid to make
a positive and long-term impact
in the community. For Baker
& McKenzie.Wong & Leow
(BMWL), it strives to do both.
Doing social good is truly
embedded in this company’s
DNA.
“The Baker & McKenzie
community is an inclusive
and diverse global firm which
enjoys a culture of friendship
that has been nurtured for over
60 years,” said Ms Celeste Ang,
Associate Principal, BMWL.
“We value respectful,
collaborative and communityminded behaviours. Individually
and as a corporate entity, we
show our commitment to social
responsibility in how we treat
each other, our clients and our
communities,” Celeste added.
In Singapore, the firm
underscores the importance
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of education amongst
disadvantaged youths and
helping marginalised segments
of the society. It actively
engages in and support targeted
community projects through
partnerships with various
independent and non-profit
organisations including ISCOS
and Beyond Social Services.
It also engages in pro bono
programmes where its lawyers
are involved with legal clinics.
Since 2011, BMWL and ISCOS
have been working closely on
several CSR projects, including
the BMWL Tuition Bursary and
Mentoring Programme and
other educational and social
activities such as Children’s
Day and Children’s Camp.
“We find unique ways to
make a difference, and have
some fun along the way,”
Celeste added.
The Tuition Bursary helps
underperforming students
from low-income families to
progress in their studies through

supplementary lessons gained
from professional tuition.
Beyond classroom teaching,
these students are matched
with volunteer mentors from
BMWL so they can have caring
adults to inspire and encourage
them in their studies.
BMWL has been providing
financial support to ISCOS.
For the last two years, its
mentors altogether clocked
over 600 volunteering hours.
These mentors are busy
executives with commitments
and responsibilities but make
time to be a big brother or sister
to a child who needs it most.
Mentors Lynette Low and Usha
K. spoke of their volunteering
experience: “We had an
enjoyable time getting to know
our mentee and some members
of her family through the various
get-togethers organised by the
Firm, ISCOS and by our own
initiative (which was supported
by the Firm). We celebrated our
mentee’s achievement when she
passed her PSLE examinations
at the end of the year.”
Another mentor, Etty Sulaiman
shared: “We are happy to be
part of this enriching programme
and fortunate to have personal
interaction with the kids. We, as
mentors learn and discover new
things along the way.”
ISCOS is proud to be
associated with a socially
responsible firm like BMWL as
we continually address social
issues and create greater
impact in our community.

SUBSIDIARY & AFFILIATE

SUBSIDIARY & AFFILIATE
CONNECT CENTRE

Formed in 2004, Connect Centre was the first call
centre in Southeast Asia to operate within prison
grounds.
Its main services comprise:
Customer service
Technical support
Emergency response programme
Telesales
Admin support
Located inside, as well as outside the Prisons, the
call centre equips inmates with hands-on experience
and necessary skills like communication techniques,
telephone ethics and listening abilities. Essentially,
it helps to spread the message of second chances
through improving job prospects for ex-offenders.
Connect Centre services a broad range of clients
from different backgrounds including food and
beverage, telecommunications, property, financial
services, government agencies and retail sector. Its
unique mission and service excellence have earned
the Centre numerous regional awards and accolades:

CCAS Contact Centre Award 2011

Judges Special Mention, Individual
Contact Centre World APAC Awards 2009
Gold Medal: Best Leader Awards
Gold Medal: Best Outsourced Partnership
Gold Medal: Best Community Spirit

Asia Pacific Customer Service Recognition of Excellence 2008
Best Outsourced Call Center Award
Best Corporate Social Responsibilities Award
Best Customer Service Representatives Award

Asia Pacific Customer Service Recognition of Excellence 2007
Best Outsourced Call Center Award
Best Corporate Social Responsibilities Award

MISTER CLEAN

Mister Clean, a subsidiary of ISCOS,
has been operating in the cleaning
and maintenance industry since 1991.
It was set up with a social purpose to
offer gainful employment and on-thejob training to ex-offenders and other
disadvantaged persons.
The company serves both residential
and industrial clientele including
factories, office buildings, and
condominiums.
Mister Clean is currently performing
services for SBS Transit, a leading
public transport operator in Singapore
for its entire fleet of buses, besides other
smaller projects.
For more information, please visit
www.mister.com.sg or call 6747 4911.

CCAS Contact Center Award 2006

Singapore Best Outsourced Awards – Gold Award
Regional Best Outsourced Awards – Gold Award
Best Team Leader of the Year

For more information, please visit
www.connectcentre.sg or
call 6304 5300.
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ISCOS SPONSORS & PARTNERS 2012
KEY SPONSORS

LEE Foundation
REACH Community Services Society
Baker & McKenzie.Wong & Leow
Network for Electronic Transfers (Singapore) Pte Ltd
Tote Board / Singapore Turf Club
Thomson CC & IAEC

‘FRIENDS OF ISCOS’

Esun International Pte Ltd
ExxonMobil Asia Pacific Pte Ltd
Institute for Career Development Pte Ltd
NTUC FairPrice Foundation

OTHER PARTNERS

77th Street (Singapore) Pte Ltd
Alvin Goh
Andrew Chow
Ang Mo Kio Police Division
Arium School of Arts & Sciences Pte Ltd
Ashram Halfway House
Asiawide Franchise Consultants Pte Ltd
BGC Group Pte Ltd
Box Hill Institute Singapore Pte Ltd
British Chamber of Commerce Singapore
CARE Network
Central Narcotics Bureau - Preventive Education Unit
Central Police Division
Central Singapore CDC
Chinese Development Assistance Council
Clementi Police Division
College of Allied Educators
Employment and Employability Institute Pte Ltd
Epi Treatz Pte Ltd
Fei Yue Family Resource Centre
Food Empire Holdings Ltd
Gift of Reading
Green Haven Halfway House
Highpoint Community Services Association
Hougang Student Care Service Centre
iFly Singapore
Jamiyah Halfway House
JIG Global Pte Ltd
Kazbar Restaurant
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Kip McGrath Worldwide Education
Centres (S) Pte Ltd
Laksania (Spice Connect Pte Ltd)
M1 Limited
Mandarin Oriental Singapore
Marsiling CCC
National Volunteer & Philanthropy
Centre
Nexus Family Resource Centre
Ossia International Pte Ltd
Our Giving Hearts
Pertapis Halfway House
Photovoice SG
Picotin Restaurant
Princeton Mind
Resorts World Sentosa
SC Kan
Seagate Technology International
Secret Recipe Cafe Pte Ltd
Singapoe Anti-Narcotics Association
Singapore Art Musuem
Singapore Corporation of
Rehabilitative Enterprises
Singapore National Co-operative
Federation
Singapore Prison Service
Social Enterprise Association
South East CDC
Spaboutique Pte Ltd
Teen Challenge
The Salvation Army
The Shelter Company
Underwater World Singapore
V Punithan
Weekender Group Pte Ltd
Yellow Ribbon Project

VOLUNTEER LIST

ISCOS VOLUNTEERS 2012
OUTSTANDING CONTRIBUTION
AWARD:

Ian Mullane
Tarani Premchand Deepchand

LONG SERVICE BRONZE TRIBUTE
AWARD:

Henry Wang Hup Ngee
Lim Chun Ji Taylen
Mohamed Idros Bin Ibrahim
Mohammad Shukor Bin Abdul
Aziz
Muhammad Fajry Mozerin
Putra
Premeela V Cleetus
Soh Guan Kwee
Steven Chia Hung Ting

CERTIFICATE OF TRIBUTE:

Celest Wong Cai Fong
Chua Poh Suan
Constance Ong Chiew Leng
Daryl Lee
Dr Fong Khai Seck
Edmund Elias Ng Eng Hing
Etty Sulaiman
Gayle Tan Lihui
Jason Ling Xiaowei
Jennifer Fong
Joceline Wong Gee Fong
K Kavitha
Kannan Renganathan Usha
Koh See Khiang
Lee Ying-Ying Michelle
Lim Selwyn
Louis Alvin Koh Hian Tang
Low Li Ling Lynette
Mandy Yee Siew Ping
Mazni Binte Kaswani
Ong Siew Kim
Rajesh Upadhya Lukas
Godfrey
Saliha Bte Muna Mohamed
Seng Yi Lin

Susan Chong Swee Sien
Xu Ting Lin
Yew Laimun

OTHER VOLUNTEERS:

Adrin Loi
Alexis Lim Yen Siew
Allison Cheng
Amias Lum
Amirtaratnam D/o Visvvasan
Andre Tan
Ang Hsueh Ling Celeste
Ang Qiao Ling Sylvia
Angel Wong
Angela Yuen Meiyi
Anthony Mccourt
Ao Wang
April Lye
Arshad Khan
Baron Huang Weilong
Benjamin Tea
Bindiya Lachmandas
Carmela Mendoza
Chan Sook Yin Constance
Cheang Yu Tong Ashley
Chee Wai Wah Josephine
Cheng CC
Cheong Sook Fun
Cheong Sook Mun
Cheryl Lim Jia En
Chia Xiao Hui
Chin Jen Ning Andrew
Chitra Ganasegaran
Choo Hua Long
Chrestella Setiyadi
Chris Snell
Christine Clare
Chua Bernice
Chun Kong Leng
Clarence Foo Chek Min
Clement Yong
Cynthia Paulsamy
Dai Hao Heng Walter
Daniel Chee Han Keong

Danny Quah Wei Sheng
Darren Teah Jun Xiang
Deng Yi
Desmond Tong Hsien Meng
Diana Tay Jia Yi
Edmund Jeghan Anthony
Elma Ching Min Hua
Eunice Lee Gek Suan
Felix Leo Kay Beng
Foo Yuan Ning
Goy Shiqin
Grace Mak Wai Min
Gururaj S/o Thulesiram
Gwee Xiao Feng April
Hameedah Bee Binte
Shamsudin
Helen Thamarai D/o Peter
Dorairaj
Heng Yi Wen
Hindran Maniam
Hirang Renacion
Hoi Wan Theng
Huang Vivian
Ibrahim Ariff
Jahara Bte Haron
Jamilah Bte Abdul Hamid
Jasni Jamil
Jessica Logan
Jessica Matunog
Jessica Tan
Joghee Balaji
John Melissa Ann
Josephine Mok
Joyce Shi Yafen
Julia Khoo Mei Leng
Justin Tan Wei Yang
Kaiwan Yip
Kamis Bin Zainal
Kasthuri D/o Sayakobe
Kathleen Khong
Katriona Mallord
Kenneth Lim Eng Kiat
Kitty Pang Ah Lay
Koh Chee Siong
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Koh Josey
Krystin Lim
Lai Pok Khin Stephen
Lalitha Ramasamy
Laura Cheng Voon Kuen
Leau Bee Bee May
Lee Wee Song
Lely Suriayani Bte Jumari
Leng Chun Kong
Li Guannan
Liew Han Ling
Liew Lan Hing
Liew Pei Chin
Lim Buck Sing
Lim Eng Kiat (Kenneth)
Lim Hui Hui
Lim Shiang-Yee
Lin Huiming
Lin Huixian
Ling Peng Wee Nick
Liu Yaning
Lorraine Tay
Low Beatrice
Lowell Tan
Lu Jielin
Malaiya Maran S/o Srinivasan
Marilyn Ho Shue Yee
Marina Bte Mahmood
Martin Magmarigen Wong
Kwan Ken
Masilamony Chittebabu
Md Zaki Bin Sani
Meenachi D/o Sundrum
Michael Song
Michele Lee
Michelle Elizabeth Tan
Michelle Espinueva
Min Low
Mohamed Faizal Said Bin
Mohamed Said
Mohammad Nurmahadi Bin
Mohammed Zakariah
Mohd Idros Bin Ibrahim
Mohd Rizal Bin Omar
Mohd Roslan Bin Hashim
Mohd Shukor Bin Abdul Aziz
Mohd Zaki
Muhd Eeraq Bin Mohd Wilee
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Neo Fang Min Sylvia
Neo Fang Ting
Neo Sze Chuan
Neo Weili
Ng Chin Yean
Ng Huey Zhen
Ngoh Siew Yen
Novia Mak
Nur Arifah Khairah Bte Md
Ariffin
Nur Asyikin Bte Md Ariffin
Ong Geok Ting
Ong Jian Hao Howard
Ong Jian Jie Harry
Ong Tee Teng Vincent
Ooi Wai Ling Roselind
Ortiz Jomel Valmores
Owen Jasmin Leonara
Damyanthi
Patricia Angelina Santiago
Patricia Veronica Teo
Penelope Ma Xuefeng
Phoon Xue Lee
Rafiah Abu Baker
Raghuvir Ramanadhan
Ranjit Singh
Rea Maureen Ava
Regina Teo
Rhoy Nacpil
Richie Ling Xiang Rong
Roopa Vasudevan
Ruthu Shree Ragavan
Samuel Kumar
Sandeep Uberoi
Sarah Anne Rixom
Sarah Salim
Saraswati
Setoh Kelly
Shaik Muhammad Bin Omar
Sharulhawazi Bin Ramly
Sheik Umar Bin Mohamed
Bagushar
Shirley Wong Geck Hoon
Shue Zhen Yao
Sim Hoon Lu
Sivakumar S/o Ramasamy
Subhashini Yelekere Swamy
Gowda

Suhailah Bte Abu Samin
Suhaira Binte Shifa
Suraya Bte Mohamed
Tan Boon Khoon @ Ah Hai
Tan Emily
Tan Mavis
Tan Pei Ling
Tan Qing Yang Andre
Tan Si Hui
Tan Yan Chong
Tay Siew Hua Michelle
Taylen Lim
Tee Jacqueline
Tee Teresa
Teh Joo Lin
Teo Ching Tat Eugene
Teo Yu-Lynn
Terence Goodall Smith
Terence Tan Chee Tiong
Thomas Danny Jeyaseelan
Thong Kah Fung, Vicky
Timothy Lim
Toh Qi Xian Terence
Veriyanti Mukti
Vijaya D/o Veeriah
Vincent B Santos
Vincent Law Chap Meng
Vincent Santos
Vivien Lee Kwai Peng
Vivienne Lim
Wang Hup Ngee Henry
Weihan Tan
Winnie Yong
Woo Kok Leong Trevor
Wyman Loke
Xu Yong Xiang Dan
Yeo Chong Peng
Yeo Wei Chun Kelvin
Yeo Xun Ru Eileen
Yip Beng Choo
Yu Jinwei
Yuslita Bte Yusof
Zahary Bin Zainal
Zhang Ya
Zheng Peixia Evin
Zheng Qi
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WE EXTEND OUR HEARTFELT APPRECIATION TO EXPAT LIVING
FOR THE DESIGN OF THIS ANNUAL REPORT.
Special thanks to Kate Mallord, EX Editor.
EXPAT LIVING is a website and monthly magazine that focuses
on what’s happening for expatriates in Singapore, including
events, property, finance, interior design, entertainment, travel,
food and wine.
It’s a must read for anyone considering moving to Singapore
as well as lifelong expats residing on the island. Expat Living
also hosts events for new comers, new mums and food lovers.
The company also publishes annual supplements such as, Kids’
Guide, Style & Beauty Guide, Health & Fitness and City Guide.
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Industrial And Services Co-Operative Society Limited And Its Subsidiaries
Statement by Directors
We state that, in the opinion of the board of directors,
(a) the accompanying statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive
income, statements of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement
together with notes thereto are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the Co-operative as at 31 December 2012
and the results of the business, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group
and the changes in equity of the Group and the Co-operative for the year ended
on that date, and
(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the
Co-operative will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Khoo Tiam Hock Vernon
Chairman
Singapore,
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Wong Heng Tew
Honorary Treasurer

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the members of Industrial And Services Co-Operative Society Limited

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Industrial and Services
Co-operative Society Limited. (“the Co-operative”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the Group) which comprise the statement of financial position of the Group and the
Co-operative as at 31 December 2012, the statement of comprehensive income and
statement of changes in equity and funds of the Group and the Co-operative,
consolidated cash flow statement of the Group for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with the provisions of the Co-operative
Societies Act (the Act) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for
devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to
provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that
they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair profit and
loss accounts and balance sheets and to maintain accountability of assets.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the members of Industrial And Services Co-Operative Society Limited
(continued)

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance
sheet and statement of changes in equity of the Co-operative are properly drawn up
in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
the Co-operative as at 31 December 2012 and the results and changes in equity of
the Group and the Co-operative and cash flows of the Group for the year ended on
that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by
the Co-operative and by those subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore of which we
are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

KONG, LIM & PARTNERS LLP
Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore, 15 May 2013
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Industrial And Services Co-Operative Society Limited And Its Subsidiaries
Statement of Financial Position
Industrial
And Services
as at 31 December
2012Co-Operative Society Limited And Its Subsidiaries
Statement of Financial Position
Group
Co-operative
as at 31 December 2012
Note
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property,
Assets plant and
equipment Assets
Non-Current
Investment
in and
Property, plant
subsidiaries
equipment
Investment
Investment in
in
associates
subsidiaries
Other
investments
Investment
in
associates
Other investments
Current Assets
Trade and other
receivables
Current
Assets
Prepayment
Trade and other
Cash
and short-term
receivables
deposits
Prepayment
Cash and short-term
deposits
Total Assets
Equity
and Liabilities
Total Assets
Equity
Share
Equitycapital
and Liabilities
Common
Equity good fund
Other
Share funds
capital
Fair
valuegood
reserve
Common
fund
Retained
earnings
Other funds
Fair value reserve
Non-controlling
interest
Retained earnings

Note

Group

2011
S$
2011
S$

2012
2011
S$Co-operativeS$
2012
2011
S$
S$

4

1,098,461

1,163,918

1,098,461

1,163,918

5
4

1,098,461-

1,163,918-

404,493
1,098,461

404,493
1,163,918

6
5
7
6
7

192,4608,093,879
9,384,800
192,460
8,093,879
9,384,800

114,0427,367,334
8,645,294
114,042
7,367,334
8,645,294

203,418
404,493
8,093,879
9,800,251
203,418
8,093,879
9,800,251

125,000
404,493
7,367,334
9,060,745
125,000
7,367,334
9,060,745

8

315,975
8,013
315,975
1,742,558
8,013
2,066,546
1,742,558
11,451,346
2,066,546

309,615
3,300
309,615
2,118,347
3,300
2,431,262
2,118,347
11,076,556
2,431,262

24,650
6,557
24,650
1,355,650
6,557
1,386,857
1,355,650
11,187,108
1,386,857

55,126
2,266
55,126
1,788,466
2,266
1,845,858
1,788,466
10,906,603
1,845,858

11,451,346

11,076,556

11,187,108

10,906,603

193,860
440,396
519,300
193,860
281,987
440,396
9,841,410
519,300
11,276,953
281,987
32,503
9,841,410
11,309,456
11,276,953
32,503
11,309,456

184,110
440,396
395,435
184,110
(72,922)
440,396
9,991,911
395,435
10,938,930
(72,922)
33,593
9,991,911
10,972,523
10,938,930
33,593
10,972,523

193,860
440,396
519,300
193,860
281,987
440,396
9,646,669
519,300
11,082,212
281,987
9,646,66911,082,212
11,082,212
11,082,212

184,110
440,396
395,435
184,110
(72,922)
440,396
9,782,603
395,435
10,729,622
(72,922)
9,782,60310,729,622
10,729,622
10,729,622

137,984
3,906
137,984
3,906141,890
11,451,346
141,890

102,955
102,955
1,078104,033
1,078
11,076,556
104,033

100,990
3,906
100,990
3,906104,896
11,187,108
104,896

176,981
176,981
-176,981
10,906,603
176,981

11,451,346

11,076,556

11,187,108

10,906,603

8
9
9

11
12
13
11
14
12
13
14

Non-controlling interest
Current Liabilities
Trade and other
payables
15
Current
Liabilities
Deferred
income
Trade and other
Provision
for income
payables
15
tax
Deferred income
Provision for income
tax
Total Equity and Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

2012
S$
2012
S$

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part
of the financial statements
The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part
of the financial statements

49

Industrial And Services Co-Operative Society Limited And Its Subsidiaries
Statement
of Comprehensive
Income Society Limited And Its Subsidiaries
Industrial And
Services Co-Operative
Statement
of Comprehensive
Income
as
at 31 December
2012
as at 31 December 2012

Revenue
Sales
of goods and
Revenue
services
Sales of goods and
Other
income
services
Other income
Items of expenses
Staff
related costs
Itemsand
of expenses
Depreciation
of costs
Staff and related
property, plant
Depreciation
of and
equipment
property, plant and
Other
expenses
equipment
Total
Otherexpenses
expenses
Share
of profit of
Total expenses
Associate
Share
of profit of
Loss
before tax
Associate
Loss before tax
Income tax benefit/
(expense)
Income
tax benefit/
(expense)
Loss after tax
Loss after tax
Other comprehensive
income:
Other
comprehensive
Netincome:
gain on availableNetfor-sale
gain onfinancial
availableassets
for-sale financial
Other
funds during the
assets
yearfunds during the
Other
year
Total comprehensive
income/
(loss) for
Total
comprehensive
the
year
income/ (loss) for
the year
Loss after tax
attributable
Loss
after tax to:
Equity
holders ofto:
the
attributable
parent
Equity holders of the
Non-controlling
interest
parent
Non-controlling interest
Total comprehensive
income/
(loss)
Total
comprehensive
attributable
to:
income/ (loss)
Equity
holders ofto:
the
attributable
parent
Equity
holders of the
Non-controlling
interest
parent
Non-controlling interest
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Group
Group

2011
S$
2011
S$

Co-operative
2012
2011
Co-operative
S$
S$
2012
2011
S$
S$

Note
Note

2012
S$
2012
S$

16
17
16
17

744,238
473,468
744,238
1,217,706
473,468
1,217,706

1,059,188
331,999
1,059,188
1,391,187
331,999
1,391,187

45,671
513,324
45,671
558,995
513,324
558,995

35,163
399,408
35,163
434,571
399,408
434,571

18
18

(1,147,817)
(1,147,817)

(1,387,162)
(1,387,162)

(491,052)
(491,052)

(410,348)
(410,348)

4
19
4
19

(76,019)
(223,887)
(76,019)
(1,447,723)
(223,887)
(1,447,723)
78,418
(151,599)
78,418
(151,599)

(78,451)
(161,524)
(78,451)
(1,627,137)
(161,524)
(1,627,137)
56,807
(179,143)
56,807
(179,143)

(76,019)
(206,276)
(76,019)
(773,347)
(206,276)
(773,347)
78,418
(135,934)
78,418
(135,934)

(78,451)
(156,848)
(78,451)
(645,647)
(156,848)
(645,647)
(211,076)(211,076)

20
20

8
8
(151,591)
(151,591)

(1,078)
(1,078)
(180,221)
(180,221)

(135,934)
(135,934)

(211,076)
(211,076)

354,909
354,909
123,865
478,774
123,865
478,774

173,585
173,585
(46,840)
126,745
(46,840)
126,745

354,909
354,909
123,865
478,774
123,865
478,774

173,585
173,585
(46,840)
126,745
(46,840)
126,745

327,183
327,183

(53,476)
(53,476)

342,840
342,840

(84,331)
(84,331)

(150,501)
(1,090)
(150,501)
(151,591)
(1,090)
(151,591)

(184,780)
4,559
(184,780)
(180,221)
4,559
(180,221)

(135,934)
(135,934)(135,934)(135,934)

(211,076)
(211,076)(211,076)(211,076)

328,273
(1,090)
328,273
327,183
(1,090)
327,183

(58,035)
4,559
(58,035)
(53,476)
4,559
(53,476)

342,840
342,840342,840342,840

(84,331)
(84,331)(84,331)(84,331)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part
of
the
financial statements
The
accompanying
accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part
of the financial statements

Industrial And Services Co-Operative Society Limited And Its Subsidiaries
Statement of Changes in Equity
as at 31 December 2012
Industrial And Services Co-Operative Society Limited And Its Subsidiaries
Statement of Changes in Equity
as at 31 December 2012

Attributable to equity holders of the Co-operat
Attributable to equity holders of the Co-operative
Statutory
Reserve
Fund
S$

Common

Share
capital
S$

171,070

820,789

440,396

-

GROUP
Balance as at 1 January
2011

GROUP

Issuance of shares to new
members (Note 11)

13,040
Balance as at 1 January
2011
-

Reclassification of statutory
reserve fund
Acquisition of investment in
associate
Total comprehensive
(loss)/income for the
year
Balance as at 31 December
2011
Issuance of shares to new
members (Note 11)
Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the
year

Issuance of shares to new
members (Note 11)

ShareGood
Fund
capitalS$
S$

171,070
(820,789)
-

13,040

Statutory Fair Common
Other
Value
Retained
Reserve
Good
Funds
Reserve
earnings
S$
S$
Fund
Fund
S$
S$
S$
442,275

(246,507)

-

-

-

-

-

820,789
-

-

440,396
820,789

-

-

-

-

9,355,902

-

-

Reclassification of statutory
(46,840)
173,585
(184,780)
reserve fund
(820,789)
184,110
440,396
395,435
(72,922)
9,991,911
Acquisition of investment in
9,750
associate
Total comprehensive
123,865
354,909
(150,501)
(loss)/income for the
Balance as at 31 December
2012year
193,860
440,396
519,300
9,841,410
-281,987
Balance as at 31 December
2011
184,110
440,396
Issuance of shares to new
The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements
members (Note 11)
9,750
Total comprehensive
6
income/(loss) for the
year
Balance as at 31 December
2012

193,860

-

440,396

Fair
ValueTotal
ReserveS$
S$

Noncontrolling
interests
S$

Other
Total
Funds
S$
S$
10,983,925
13,040

442,275
-

-

(58,035)
10,938,930
9,750

-

Ret
earn
S

26,694

11,010,619

-

13,040

(246,507)
2,340

-

2,340

4,559

(53,476)

33,593

10,972,523

-

328,273

(1,090)

(46,840)

32,503

9,3

-

8

9,750

327,183

11,309,456
173,585

(18

395,435

(72,922)

9,9

-

-

123,865

354,909

(15

519,300

281,987

9,8

11,276,953

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial sta
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Industrial
And Services
Co-Operative
Limited And Its Subsidiaries
Statement
of December
Changes in Equity
as
at
31
2012
as at 31 December 2012
Statutory
Reserve
Fund
S$

Share
capital
S$
CO-OPERATIVE
Balance as at 1 January 2011
Issuance of shares to new members
(Note 11)
Reclassification
GROUP of statutory reserve fund
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the
year
Balance
as at 1 January
Balance2011
as at 31 December 2011
Issuance
of shares
to new members
Issuance
of shares
to new
(Note 11)
members
(Note
11)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for
the
year
Reclassification of statutory

reserve
fund 2012
Balance
as at 31 December

Share
171,070
capital
S$
13,040
-

171,070
184,110
9,750

13,040
-

193,860

Common
Good
Fund
S$

Statutory
Reserve
820,789 Fund440,396
S$
-

Funds
S$

Reserve
S$

earnings
S$

Common
Fair
Good
Other
Value
442,275
9,172,890 Reserve
10,800,913
Fund (246,507) Funds
S$
S$
S$13,040

-

-

-

820,789

-

-

-

(46,840)

173,585

(211,076)

(84,331)

- 820,789
440,396
-

440,396 (72,922)442,275
395,435
9,782,603 (246,507)
10,729,622

-

-

-

123,865

(820,789)
440,396

519,300

-

-

-

-

193,860

-

440,396

-

9,355,

-

(135,934)

342,840

281,987

9,646,669

11,082,212

519,300

Retain
earnin
S$

9,750

354,909

Acquisition of investment in
associate
Total comprehensive
(loss)/income for the
year
(46,840)
Balance as at 31 December
2011
184,110
440,396
395,435
Issuance of shares to new
members accounting
(Note 11)policies and explanatory
9,750notes form an integral- part of the financial- statements
The accompanying
Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the
7
year
123,865
Balance as at 31 December
2012

Total
S$

(820,789)

-

-

Fair

Attributable
to equityRetained
holders of the Co-operative
Other
Value

820,

-

173,585

(184,7

(72,922)

9,991,

-

354,909

(150,5

281,987

9,841,

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statem
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Industrial And Services Co-Operative Society Limited And Its Subsidiaries
Statement of Cash Flow
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012
Group
Industrial And Services Co-Operative Society Limited And Its Subsidiaries
2012
2011
Statement of Cash Flow
S$
S$
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Loss before tax
(151,599)Group (179,143)
Adjustment for:
2012
2011
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
76,019
78,451
S$
S$
Dividend
income
(13,614)
(12,536)
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Netbefore
loss from
6,398
163,981
Loss
tax other investment
(151,599)
(179,143)
Gain
on
sale
of
property,
plant
and
equipment
(293)
Adjustment for:
Share
of
profit
of
Associate
(78,418)
(56,807)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
76,019
78,451
Operating
cash
flows
before
changes
in
working
Dividend income
(13,614)
(12,536)
capital
(161,214)
(6,347)
Net loss from other investment
6,398
163,981
Changes
in
working
capital:
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
(293)
Trade
otherofreceivables
(6,360)
70,821
Share and
of profit
Associate
(78,418)
(56,807)
Prepayments
(4,713)
1,660
Operating
cash flows before changes in working
Trade
and
other
payables
35,029
(31,859)
capital
(161,214)
(6,347)
Deferred
3,906
Changes
in income
working capital:
Cash
flows
(used
in)/generated
from
Trade and other receivables
(6,360)
70,821
operations
(133,352)
34,275
Prepayments
(4,713)
1,660
Income
tax
paid
(1,070)
(2,510)
Trade and other payables
35,029
(31,859)
NetDeferred
cash flows
(used in)/generated from
income
3,906
operating
activities
(134,422)
31,765
Cash
flows (used
in)/generated from
operations
(133,352)
34,275
Cash
Flows
From
Investing
Activities
Income tax paid
(1,070)
(2,510)
Purchase
of property,
and equipment
(10,562)
(23,632)
Net cash flows
(usedplant
in)/generated
from
Netoperating
placementactivities
with fund manager for investment
(378,034)
(1,373,358)
(134,422)
31,765
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment
293
Cash
Flows From Investing Activities
Dividend
received
13,614
12,536
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
(10,562)
(23,632)
Net placement
cash flowswith
used
in manager
investingfor
activities
(374,982)
(1,384,161)
Net
fund
investment
(378,034)
(1,373,358)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
Cash
Flows From Financing Activities
equipment
293
Proceeds
from issuance of share capital
9,750
13,740
Dividend received
13,614
12,536
Surplus/(payment)
of other
funds activities
123,865
(46,840)
Net cash flows used
in investing
(374,982)
(1,384,161)
Fixed deposit pledged for banking facilities
(280)
Net
cash
flows
used
in
financing
activities
133,615
(33,380)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of share capital
9,750
13,740
Net
decrease in cash
and funds
cash equivalents
(375,789)
(1,385,776)
Surplus/(payment)
of other
123,865
(46,840)
Cash
cashpledged
equivalents
at beginning
of year
1,921,8793,307,655
Fixed and
deposit
for banking
facilities
(280)
Cash
andflows
cash used
equivalents
at endactivities
of year
Net cash
in financing
133,615
(33,380)
(Note 9)
1,546,090
1,921,879
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
(375,789)
(1,385,776)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
1,921,879
3,307,655
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
(Note 9)
1,546,090
1,921,879

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part
of the financial statements
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Industrial And Services Co-Operative Society Limited And Its Subsidiaries
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012
These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying financial statements.
1.

Co-operative information
Industrial and Services Co-operative Society Limited (the “Co-operative”) is a
society registered under the Co-operative Societies Act, Cap. 62. Its principal
place of business and registered office is at 237 Alexandra Road #04-19, The
Alexcier Singapore 159929.
The principal activity of the Co-operative is to provide a channel for gainful
employment and self-help activities for discharged inmates of penal
institutions and drug rehabilitation centres. It also participates in commercial
activities through various business divisions.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities
during the financial year.

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet
and the statement of changes in equity and funds of the Co-operative have
been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards
(FRS) including related interpretations promulgated by the Accounting
Standards Council and the disclosure requirements of the Co-operative
Societies Act, Cap.62.
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis
except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.
The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars (SGD or S$).

2.2

Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous
financial year except in the current financial year, the Group has adopted all
the new and revised standards and Interpretations of FRS (INT FRS) that are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012. The
adoption of these standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the
financial performance or position of the Group and Co-operative.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3

Standards issued but not yet effective
The Group has not adopted the following standards and interpretations that
have been issued but not yet effective:

Description
Amendments to FRS 1 Presentation of items of
Other Comprehensive Income
Revised FRS 19 Employee Benefits
FRS 113 Fair Value Measurement
Amendments to FRS 107 Disclosures- Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Improvements to FRSs 2012
- Amendment to FRS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements
- Amendment to FRS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment
- Amendment to FRS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation
Revised FRS 27 Separate Financial Statements
Revised FRS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures
FRS 110 Consolidated Financial Statements
FRS 111 Joint Arrangements
FRS 112 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities
Amendments to FRS 32 Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

Effective for annual
year beginning
on or after
1 July 2012
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014

Except for the Amendments to FRS 1, the directors expect that the adoption
of the standards and interpretations above will have no material impact on the
financial statements in the period of initial application. The nature of
impending changes in accounting policy on adoption of the Amendment to
FRS 1 is described below.
The Amendments to FRS 1 Presentation of items of Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI) is effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012.
The Amendments to FRS 1 changes the grouping of items presented in OCI.
Items that could be reclassified to profit or loss at a future point in time would
be presented separately from items which will never be reclassified. As the
Amendments only affect the presentations of items that are already
recognised in OCI, the Co-operative does not expect any impact on its
financial position or performance upon adoption of this standard.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012
2.
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4
2.4

Basis of consolidation
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of
the Co-operative and its subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period.
the Co-operative and its subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the preparation of the
The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are prepared for the same reporting date
consolidated financial statements are prepared for the same reporting date
as the Co-operative. Consistent accounting policies are applied to like
as the Co-operative. Consistent accounting policies are applied to like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
All intra-group balances, income and expenses
All intra-group balances, income and expenses
losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
full.
full.

and unrealised gains and
and unrealised gains and
dividends are eliminated in
dividends are eliminated in

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on
which the Group obtain control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
which the Group obtain control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.
that such control ceases.
Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if
Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if
that results in a deficit balance.
that results in a deficit balance.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a
is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a
subsidiary, it:
subsidiary, it:
 De-recognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
 De-recognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when controls is lost;
subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when controls is lost;
 De-recognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;
 De-recognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;
 De-recognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
 De-recognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
 Recognises the fair value of the consideration received;
 Recognises the fair value of the consideration received;
 Recognises the fair value of any investment retained;
 Recognises the fair value of any investment retained;
 Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss;
 Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss;
 Re-classifies the Group’s share of components previously recognised in
 Re-classifies the Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as
other comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as
appropriate.
appropriate.
2.5
2.5

Transactions with non-controlling interests
Transactions with non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interest represents the equity in subsidiaries not attributable,
Non-controlling interest represents the equity in subsidiaries not attributable,
directly or indirectly, to owners of the Co-operative, and are presented
directly or indirectly, to owners of the Co-operative, and are presented
separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within
separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within
equity in the consolidated balance sheet, separately from equity attributable
equity in the consolidated balance sheet, separately from equity attributable
to owners of the Co-operative.
to owners of the Co-operative.
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Changes in the Co-operative owner’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
Changes in the Co-operative owner’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. In
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. In
such circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and nonsuch circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and noncontrolling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Coor received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Cooperative.
operative.

Industrial And Services Co-Operative Society Limited And Its Subsidiaries
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.6

Foreign currency
Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional
currencies of the Co-operative and are recorded on initial recognition in the
functional currencies at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting year. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on
translating monetary items at the end of the reporting year are recognised in
profit or loss.

2.7

Property, plant and equipment
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost.
Subsequent to recognition, plant and equipment and furniture and fixtures are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
property, plant and equipment that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying property, plant and equipment. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if,
and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Co-operative and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.
When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced in intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of
the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:
Years
Computers and equipment
Renovation
Property

3-5
5
25
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable.
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each
financial year-end, and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on de-recognition of the asset is included in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised.

2.8

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when an annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of
the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows expected to be generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account,
if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation
model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair
value indicators.
Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in profit or loss in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset,
except for assets that are previously revalued where the revaluation was
taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also
recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous
revaluation.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such
reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is measured at
revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation
increase.

2.9

Subsidiary Companies
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In the Co-operative’s separate financial statements, an investment in
subsidiary is accounted for at cost less impairment losses.

2.10

Associates
An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a joint venture, in which
the Group has significant influence. An associate is equity accounted for from
the date the Group obtains significant influence until the date the Group
ceases to have significant influence over the associate.
The Group’s investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment in associates is carried in
the balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share
of net assets of the associates. Goodwill relating to associates is included in
the carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortised nor tested
individually for impairment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the associate’s identifiable asset, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of the investment is included as income in the determination of
the Group’s share of results of the associate in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
The profit or loss reflects the share of the results of operations of the
associates. Where there has been a change recognised in other
comprehensive income by the associates, the Group recognizes its share of
such changes in other comprehensive income. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are
eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associates.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.10

Associates (continued)
The Group’s share of the profit or loss of its associates is shown on the face
of profit or loss after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of
associates.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is
necessary to recognize an additional impairment loss on the Group’s
investment in its associates. The Group determines at the end of each
reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that the investment
in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognizes the amount in profit or
loss.
The financial statements of the associates are prepared as of the same
reporting date as the Group. Where necessary, adjustments are made to
bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.
Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures
and recognised any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant
influence and the fair value of the aggregate of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

2.11

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value.
Subsequent measurement
Loans and receivables
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market are classified as loans and receivables.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables
are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.11

Financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available for sale financial assets
Available for sale financial assets include equity and debt securities. Equity
investments classified available for sale are those, which are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss.
Debt securities in this category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.
After initial recognition, available for sale financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Any gains or losses from changes in fair value of the
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income, except that
impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary
instruments and interest calculated using the effective interest method are
recognised in profit or loss. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as
a reclassification adjustment when the financial asset is derecognised.
Investment in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost less impairment loss.
De-recognition
A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash
flows from the asset has expired. On de-recognition of a financial asset in its
entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

2.12

Impairment of financial assets
The Co-operative assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired.
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that
are not individually significant. If the Co-operative determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to be recognised are not included in
a collective assessment of impairment.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.12

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets
carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired
financial assets is reduced directly or if an amount was charged to the
allowance account, the amounts charged to the allowance account are
written off against the carrying value of the financial asset.
To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
financial assets has been incurred, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
default or significant delay in payments.
If in a subsequent year, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised
in profit or loss.
Available for sale financial assets
In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective
evidence of impairment include (i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or obligor, (ii) information about significant changes with an adverse effect
that have taken place in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment in which the issuer operates and indicates that the cost of the
investment in equity instrument may not be recovered; and (iii) a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost.
‘Significant’ is to be evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost.
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If an available for sale financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the
difference between its acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from other comprehensive income
and recognised in profit or loss. Reversals of impairment losses in respect of
equity instruments are not recognised in profit or loss, increase in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.13

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, cash on hand and fixed
deposits.

2.14

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting year and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of
economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is
reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

2.15

Government grants
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair
value is recognised as deferred capital grant on the balance sheet and is
amortised to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments.

2.16

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value.
Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised, and through
the amortisation process.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.16

Financial liabilities (continued)
De-recognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

2.17

Revenue
Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured,
regardless of when the payment is made. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty.
Revenue from services is recognised over the period the services are
performed.
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is
established.

2.18

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the
laws of the countries in which it has operations. In particular, the Singapore
companies in the Group make contributions to the Central Provident Fund
scheme in Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions
to defined contribution pension schemes are recognised as an expense in the
year in which the related service is performed.

2.19

Leases
As lessee
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Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. The aggregate benefit of incentives
provided by the lessor is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.20

Taxes
Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting year, in the countries where the Group operates and generates
taxable income.
Current income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
the tax relates to items recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. There is no deferred tax at
balance sheet date.
Sales tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales
tax except:
-

Where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not
recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the sales tax is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item as applicable; and

-

Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax
included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.21

Related parties
A related party is defined as follows:
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Group if that person:
(i)
Has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) Has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) Is a member of the key management personnel of the Group.
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies :
(i)
The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related
to the others).
(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group;
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in
(a);
(vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

2.22

Share capital and share issuance expenses
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as share capital in
equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of ordinary
shares are deducted against share capital.
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Significant accounting judgments and estimates
The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires the management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. However, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in the future periods.
Key sources of estimation of uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation of uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial period are discussed below.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
The cost of property, plant and equipments is depreciated on a straight line
basis over the property, plant and equipments’ useful lives. Management
estimates the useful lives of these property, plant and equipments to be 3 to
25 years. These are common life expectancies applied in the similar industry.
The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment at 31
December 2012 was S$1,098,461 (2011: S$1,163,918) respectively. Changes
in the expected level of usage could impact the economic useful lives of these
assets; therefore, future depreciation charges could be revised.
Judgements made in applying accounting polices
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has
made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.
Determination of functional currency
The Group measures foreign currency transactions in the respective functional
currencies of the Group and its subsidiaries. In determining the functional
currencies of the entities in the Group, judgment is required to determine the
currency that mainly influences sales prices for services and of the country
whose competitive forces and regulations mainly determines the sales prices
of its goods and services. The functional currencies of the entities in the
Group are determined based on management’s assessment of the economic
environment in which the entities operate and the entities’ process of
determining sales prices.
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4.

4.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment

Property
S$
Group and Co-operative
Cost
Group and Co-operative
At 1 January 2011
Cost
Additions
At 1 2011
January 2011
At 31 December
Additions Additions
At 31 December
At 312012
December 2011

1,125,280
1,125,280
1,125,280

Additions

Accumulated depreciation
At2011
31 December 2012
At 1 January
Charges for the financial year
At 31 December 2011
Accumulated depreciation
Charges for the financial year
At 1 2012
January 2011
At 31 December

45,011
45,011
45,011
90,022

Charges for the financial year
2011
1,035,258
Charges for the financial year
At 312011
December 2012
At 31 December
1,080,269
Net carrying amounts
At 31 December
At 31 December 2012

Net carrying amounts
At 31 December 2012
At 31 December 2011

23

Renovation
Property
S$

S$

71,980
1,125,280
71,980
71,980
1,125,280

1,125,280
14,396
14,396
14,396
28,792

45,011
45,011
43,188
45,011
57,58490,022

S$

124,032
23,632
147,664
10,562
158,226

102,555
19,044
121,599
16,612
138,211

20,015
26,065

1,321,292
23,632
71,980
1,344,924
-10,562
1,355,486
71,980

71,980
102,555
78,451
181,006
76,019
257,025

14,396
14,396
1,098,461
14,396
28,792
1,163,918

1,035,258

43,188

1,080,269

57,584

23
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5.
Investment in subsidiaries
Co-operative
2012 Co-operative2011
2012
2011
S$
S$
S$
S$
Shares at cost
1,703,000
1,703,000
Shares
at cost
1,703,000
1,703,000
Less: Impairment
loss
(1,298,507)
(1,298,507)
Less: Impairment loss
(1,298,507)
(1,298,507)
404,493
404,493
404,493
404,493
The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:
The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:
Country of
incorporation
Country of
Name of
/ place of
Principal
% of equity
incorporation
subsidiary
activities
Name of
/business
place of
Principal
% ofheld
equity
2012 held 2011
subsidiary
business
activities
%
%
2012
2011
Held by the Co-operative
%
%
Held by the Co-operative
Building-cleaning
Mister Clean
PrivateClean
Limited*
Singapore
Mister
Private Limited*
Singapore
RE Holdings
Singapore
Private
Limited*
RE
Holdings
Singapore
Private Limited*
* Audited by Kong, Lim & Partners LLP
* Audited by Kong, Lim & Partners LLP
6.
6.

and janitorial
Building-cleaning
services
and
janitorial
services
Investment
holding
Investment
holding

100
100

100
100

82
82

82
82

Investment in associate
Investment in associate

Shares at cost
Share ofatpost
Shares
cost
acquisition
Share
of post result
acquisition result

Group
2012 Group 2011
2012
2011
S$
S$
S$
S$
114,042
252,340
114,042
252,340
78,418
(138,298)
78,418
(138,298)
192,460
114,042
192,460
114,042

Co-operative
2012Co-operative
2011
2012
2011
S$
S$
S$
S$
125,000
125,000
125,000
125,000
78,418
78,418
203,418
125,000203,418
125,000
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Investment in associate (continued)
Country of
Name of
incorporation
Country of
Principal
% of equity
associated
/ place of
incorporation
Name of
activities
Principal
% ofheld
equity
companies
/business
place of
associated
activities
held
2012
2011
companies
business
%
%
2012
2011
Held by the Co-operative
%
%
Held by the Co-operative
Set up and
manage
a call
Set
up and
centre
and
to
manage a call
engage
in
all
centre and to
other related
engage
in all
activities
other
related
activities

Connect
Centre Pte.
Connect
Ltd.* Pte.
Singapore
25
25
Centre
Ltd.*
Singapore
25
25
* Audited by Kong, Lim & Partners LLP
* Audited by Kong, Lim & Partners LLP
The summarised financial information of the associated Company are as
follows:
The
summarised financial information of the associated Company are as
follows:
2012
2011
2012
2011
S$
S$
S$
S$
Assets and liabilities:
Assets
and assets
liabilities:
Non-current
247,404
169,625
Non-current
assets
247,404
169,625
Current assets
818,773
565,301
Current
assets
818,773
565,301
Total assets
1,066,177
734,926
Total assets
1,066,177
734,926
Current liabilities
Current
liabilities
Total liabilities
Total liabilities
Results:
Results:
Revenue
Revenue
Profit for the financial year
Profit for the financial year
7.
7.

276,043
276,043
276,043

1,968,502
1,968,502
343,624
343,624

1,746,937
1,746,937
230,016
230,016

Other investments
Other investments

Available for sale
-unquoted for
shares
Available
salein Co-operative
-quoted bonds
-unquoted
shares in Co-operative
-quoted bonds
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293,621
293,621
293,621

Group and Co-operative
Group
2012 and Co-operative
2011
2012
2011
S$
S$
S$
S$
50,000
50,000
8,043,879
7,317,334
50,000
50,000
8,043,879
7,317,334
8,093,879
7,367,334
8,093,879
7,367,334
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Industrial
Andinvestments
Services Co-Operative
7.
Other investments (continued)
The investments are denominated in the following currencies:
The investments are denominated in the following currencies:
Group and Co-operative
Group
2012 and Co-operative
2011
2012
2011
S$
S$
S$
S$
United States Dollar
267,240
135,065
Brazil
Real
236,096
237,803
United States Dollar
267,240
135,065
Singapore
7,191,017
6,994,466
Brazil RealDollar
236,096
237,803
Australia
399,526
SingaporeDollar
Dollar
7,191,017
6,994,466Australia Dollar
399,526
8,093,879
7,367,3348,093,879
7,367,334
8.
8.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Other
debtors
Trade
receivables
Other debtors
Other receivables
Subsidiary
Other
receivables
company
Subsidiary
Related
parties
company
Deposits
Related parties
Others
Deposits
Others
Total trade and
other
Total
trade and
receivables
other
Add:
Cash and short
receivables
term
Add:
Cash
and short
Cash
anddeposits
short
term
deposits
Total
loan
and
Total
loan and
receivables
receivables

Group
2012 Group 2011
2012
2011
S$
S$
S$
S$
176,125
227,054
176,125
227,054
176,125
227,054

Co-operative
2012Co-operative
2011
2012
2011
S$
S$
S$
S$
514
21,925
514
21,925
514
21,925

3,638134,646
3,638
1,566
134,646
1,566
139,850
139,850

2,48469,050
2,484
11,027
69,050
11,027
82,561
82,561

2,140
3,638
2,140
17,870
3,638
488
17,870
488
24,136
24,136

2,140
2,484
2,140
17,550
2,484
11,027
17,550
11,027
33,201
33,201

315,975
315,975
1,742,558
1,742,558
2,058,533
2,058,533

309,615
309,615
2,118,347
2,118,347
2,427,962
2,427,962

24,650
24,650
1,355,650
1,355,650
1,380,300
1,380,300

55,126
55,126
1,788,466
1,788,466
1,843,592
1,843,592
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8.
Trade and other receivables (continued)
Receivables that are past due but not impaired
Receivables that are past due but not impaired
The Group and the Co-operative has trade receivables that are past due at
the balance
sheet
but not impaired.
receivables
arepast
unsecured
The
Group and
thedate
Co-operative
has tradeThese
receivables
that are
due at
and balance
the analysis
of date
their aging
at impaired.
the balance
sheetreceivables
date is as follows:
the
sheet
but not
These
are unsecured
and the analysis of their aging at the balance sheet date is as follows:
Group
Co-operative
2012 Group 2011
2012Co-operative
2011
2012
2011
2012
2011
S$
S$
S$
S$
Trade receivables past due:S$
S$
S$
S$
Lesser
than 30 past due:
Trade
receivables
days than 30
55,354
79,377
1,200
Lesser
30
to 60 days
17,454
38,495
days
55,354
79,377
1,200More
than
60
30
to 60
days
17,454
38,495
daysthan 60
37,508
19,485
12,869
More
days
37,508
19,485
12,869
110,316
137,357
14,069
110,316
137,357
14,069
Receivables that are impaired
Receivables that are impaired
The Group and Co-operative’s trade receivables that are impaired at the end
of the
reporting
year and the movement
of the allowance
accounts
to
The
Group
and Co-operative’s
trade receivables
that are impaired
at used
the end
record
the impairment
are as
of
the reporting
year and
thefollows:
movement of the allowance accounts used to
record the impairment are as follows:
Group
Co-operative
2012 Group 2011
2012Co-operative
2011
2012
2011
2012
2011
S$
S$
S$
S$
S$
S$
S$
S$
Trade receivables
13,159
13,159
10,270
10,270
Less: Allowance
Trade
receivablesfor
13,159
13,159
10,270
10,270
impairment
(13,159)
(13,159)
(10,270)
(10,270)
Less:
Allowance for
impairment
(13,159)
(13,159)
(10,270)
(10,270)
Movement in allowance accounts:
At 1 January
13,159
13,159
10,270
10,270
Movement
in allowance accounts:
Written
off
At 1 January
13,159
13,159
10,270
10,270back
Written off
Written
back
At 31 December
13,159
13,159
10,270
10,270At 31 December
13,159
13,159
10,270
10,270
Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the end
of the receivables
reporting year
relate
to debtors
that are
in impaired
significantat financial
Trade
that are
individually
determined
to be
the end
difficulties
and have
payments.
are not
of
the reporting
yeardefaulted
relate toondebtors
that These
are in receivables
significant financial
secured by and
any collateral
or crediton
enhancements.
difficulties
have defaulted
payments. These receivables are not
secured by any collateral or credit enhancements.
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9.
Cash and cash equivalents
Group
Co-operative
2012 Group 2011
2012Co-operative
2011
2012
2011
2012
2011
S$
S$
S$
S$
S$
S$
S$
S$
Fixed deposits
196,468
594,091
165,000
562,623
Cash
bank
Fixed and
deposits
196,468
594,091
165,000
562,623
balances
1,546,090
1,524,256
1,190,650
1,225,843
Cash
and bank
Cash
and short term
balances
1,546,090
1,524,256
1,190,650
1,225,843
deposits
1,742,558
2,118,347
1,355,650
1,788,466
Cash and short term
Pledge
for
bank
deposits
1,742,558
2,118,347
1,355,650
1,788,466
facilities
(196,468)
(196,468)
(165,000)
(165,000)
Pledge
for bank
Cash
and cash
facilities
(196,468)
(196,468)
(165,000)
(165,000)
equivalents
1,546,090
1,921,879
1,190,650
1,623,466
Cash
and cash
equivalents
1,546,090
1,921,879
1,190,650
1,623,466
Fixed deposits amounting $196,468 (2011:$196,648) have been pledged with
a
bankdeposits
as security
for banking
facilities
granted to the have
Group.
Fixed
amounting
$196,468
(2011:$196,648)
been pledged with
a bank as security for banking facilities granted to the Group.
10.
10.

Central Co-operative Fund
Central Co-operative Fund
Pursuant to Section 71 of the Co-operative Society Act, Cap. 62, every
society shall
theCo-operative
first $500,000Society
of the surplus
resulting
from
Pursuant
to contribute
Section 715%ofofthe
Act, Cap.
62, every
operations
of
the
society
to
the
Central
Co-operative
Fund
and
20%
of
any
society shall contribute 5% of the first $500,000 of the surplus resulting from
surplus in excess
$500,000
from
the operations
of the
society
to any
the
operations
of the of
society
to the
Central
Co-operative
Fund
and either
20% of
Central in
Co-operative
Fund or from
to the
Foundation
surplus
excess of $500,000
theSingapore
operationsLabour
of the society
eitheras
to the
society may
opt.
Central
Co-operative
Fund or to the Singapore Labour Foundation as the
society may opt.

11.
11.

Share capital
Share capital
Group and Co-operative
Group
2012 and Co-operative
2011
2012
2011
S$
S$
S$
S$
184,110
171,070
9,750
13,040
184,110
171,070
9,750
13,040
193,860
184,110
193,860
184,110

Beginning balance
Addition balance
Beginning
Addition
Ending balance
Ending balance
By-law 4.5 states that:
“Every 4.5
member
By-law
statesshall
that:pay the following dues on becoming a member of the
Society:member shall pay the following dues on becoming a member of the
“Every
Society:
a)
entrance fee of $10.00 (Ten Dollars); and
a)
entrance fee of $10.00 (Ten Dollars); and
b)
payment for purchase of at least 10 shares subject to By-law 9.3.2.”
b)
payment for purchase of at least 10 shares subject to By-law 9.3.2.”
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12.
Common good fund
The fund shall be used for the benefit of the members of the Co-operative
and may,
with the
Registrar,
devoted of
to the
any Co-operative
educational,
The
fund shall
be approval
used for of
thethe
benefit
of thebe
members
medical,
or approval
charitable
Thebe
common
shall be
and
may, social
with the
of purposes.
the Registrar,
devotedgood
to anyfund
educational,
derived
from
an
annual
contribution,
not
exceeding
10%
of
the
net
surplus
of
medical, social or charitable purposes. The common good fund shall be
the
Co-operative,
subject
to
the
approval
at
the
general
meeting.
It
is
not
derived from an annual contribution, not exceeding 10% of the net surplus of
available
for dividends.
the
Co-operative,
subject to the approval at the general meeting. It is not
available for dividends.
13.
13.

Other funds
Other funds
Group
Co-operative
2012 Group 2011
2012Co-operative
2011
2012
2011
2012
2011
S$
S$
S$
S$
Fairy Godparent
S$
S$
S$
S$
Fund
70,906
60,221
70,906
60,221
Fairy
Godparent
GiftFund
of Hope Fund
89,505
149,383
89,505
149,383
70,906
60,221
70,906
60,221
Skills
Training
Fund
165,500
104,960
165,500
104,960
Gift of Hope Fund
89,505
149,383
89,505
149,383
Members'
Programs
Skills
Training
Fund
165,500
104,960
165,500
104,960
Fund Programs
121,186
69,575
121,186
69,575
Members'
SMS
Services
72,203
11,296
72,203
11,296
Fund
121,186
69,575
121,186
69,575
SMS Services
72,203
11,296
72,203
11,296
519,300
395,435
519,300
395,435
519,300
395,435
519,300
395,435
The movements of these funds are disclosed in the Statement in Changes in
Equity
and Funds.
The
movements
of these funds are disclosed in the Statement in Changes in
Equity and Funds.
These funds are set up with their objectives as follows:
These funds are set up with their objectives as follows:
a) To provide support to ex-offenders and ex-offenders’ families, especially
theirprovide
childrensupport
(usuallytothe
secondary victims
of crime); families, especially
a) To
ex-offenders
and ex-offenders’
their children (usually the secondary victims of crime);
b) Welcoming back ex-offenders into the society by presenting a “goodie bag”
“Giftback
of Hope”
initiative;into
andthe society by presenting a “goodie bag”
b) through
Welcoming
ex-offenders
through “Gift of Hope” initiative; and
c) In support of programs to help ex-offenders and their children.
c) In support of programs to help ex-offenders and their children.

14.
14.
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Fair value reserve
Fair value reserve
Fair value reserve represents the cumulative fair value changes, net of tax, of
available-for-sale
assets
until they are
of or impaired.
Fair
value reservefinancial
represents
the cumulative
fairdisposed
value changes,
net of tax, of
available-for-sale financial assets until they are disposed of or impaired.
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15.
Trade and other payables
Group
Co-operative
2012 Group 2011
2012Co-operative
2011
2012
2011
2012
2011
Trade payables
42,018
47,148
11,510
5,347
Other payables
Trade
payables
42,018
47,148
11,510
5,347
Accruals
38,927
13,800
32,441
6,600
Other
payables
Deposit received
4,201
4,201
4,201
4,201
Accruals
38,927
13,800
32,441
6,600
Others received
52,838
37,806
52,838
160,833
Deposit
4,201
4,201
4,201
4,201
Others
52,838
37,806
52,838
160,833
137,984
102,955
100,990
176,981
137,984
102,955
100,990
176,981
These amounts are non-interest bearing. Trade payables are normally settled
on 60-day
termsare
while
other payables
have
an average
term
six months.
These
amounts
non-interest
bearing.
Trade
payables
areofnormally
settled
on 60-day terms while other payables have an average term of six months.
Trade and other payables are denominated in Singapore Dollars.
Trade and other payables are denominated in Singapore Dollars.
16.
16.

Revenue
Revenue

Cleaning services
Sales of services
Cleaning
services
Sales of services

Group
2012 Group 2011
2012
2011
698,567
1,036,203
45,671
22,985
698,567
1,036,203
45,671
22,985
744,238
1,059,188
744,238
1,059,188

Co-operative
2012Co-operative
2011
2012
2011
12,178
45,67122,985
12,178
45,671
22,985
35,163
45,671
35,163
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17.
Other income
The following items have been included in arriving at other income:
The following items have been included in arriving at other income:
Group
Co-operative
2012 Group 2011
2012Co-operative
2011
2012
2011
2012
2011
Membership fees
received fees
9,234
12,215
9,234
12,215
Membership
Dividend
income from
received
9,234
12,215
9,234
12,215
unquoted
equities
13,614
12,536
30,264
29,186
Dividend
income
from
Interest
income
- non
unquoted
equities
13,614
12,536
30,264
29,186
related
parties
234,788
289,754
234,788
289,754
Interest
income
- non
Gain
on sale
of
related
parties
234,788
289,754
234,788
289,754
Gainproperty,
on sale of
plant
and
property,
equipment
293
293
plant and
Management
17,40014,400
41,40040,900
equipmentfee
293
293
Bad debts recovered
400
440
400
440
Management
fee
17,400
14,400
41,400
40,900
Net realised
loss from
Bad
debts recovered
400
440
400
440
investment
(6,398)
(163,981)
(6,398)
(163,981)
Netother
realised
loss from
Workmen
injury
other investment
(6,398)
(163,981)
(6,398)
(163,981)
compensation
2,850
Workmen
injury
Support
and
compensation
2,850
administration
fee
157,581
75,204
157,581
75,204
Support
and
(Loss)/gain
on foreign
administration
fee
157,581
75,204
157,581
75,204
(Loss)/gain
on foreign
exchange
(23,904)
31,318
(23,904)
31,318
exchange
(23,904)
31,318
(23,904)
31,318
18.
18.

Staff and related costs
Staff and related costs

Key management's
Keyremuneration
management's
Salaries
and CPF
remuneration
Salaries
CPF
Staff andand
related
Staff
and
related
costs
Salaries
costs
CPF/SDL/FWL
Salaries
Others
CPF/SDL/FWL
Others
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2012
2012
S$
S$

Group
Group 2011
2011
S$
S$

Co-operative
2012Co-operative
2011
2012
2011
S$
S$
S$
S$

58,483
58,483

85,398
85,398

58,483
58,483

85,398
85,398

1,027,670
50,277
1,027,670
11,387
50,277
11,387
1,089,334
1,089,334
1,147,817
1,147,817

1,258,998
37,789
1,258,998
4,977
37,789
4,977
1,301,764
1,301,764
1,387,162
1,387,162

372,745
48,437
372,745
11,387
48,437
11,387
432,569
432,569
491,052
491,052

275,925
44,117
275,925
4,908
44,117
4,908
324,950
324,950
410,348
410,348
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19.
Other expenses
The following items have been included in arriving at other expenses:
The following items have been included in arriving at other expenses:
Group
Co-operative
2012 Group 2011
2012Co-operative
2011
2012
2011
2012
2011
General expenses
27,020
5,671
22,889
11,043
Repair and
General
expenses
27,020
5,671
22,889
11,043
maintenance
11,922
11,886
11,922
11,726
Repair
and
Telephone
charges
14,441
9,839
13,949
9,274
maintenance
11,922
11,886
11,922
11,726
Transport charges
12,870
11,719
12,655
11,719
Telephone
14,441
9,839
13,949
9,274
Transport
12,870
11,719
12,655
11,719
Utilities
10,496
8,548
10,496
8,548
Utilities
10,496
8,548
10,496
8,548
20.
20.

Income tax (benefit)/expense
Income tax (benefit)/expense
The Co-operative is registered under the Co-operative Societies Act. Under
Section
13(1)(f) ofis the
Incomeunder
Tax the
Act;Co-operative
the income Societies
of any co-operative
The Co-operative
registered
Act. Under
registered
under the
Co-operative
Societies
Act is
exempted
fromco-operative
tax.
Section
13(1)(f)
of the
Income Tax
Act; the
income
of any
registered under the Co-operative Societies Act is exempted from tax.
Major components of income tax expense
Major components of income tax expense
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31
December
and 2011of
areincome
as follows:
The major 2012
components
tax expense for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
2012
2012
S$
S$
Current year
Current
year in prior year
Over provision
Over provision in prior year

Group
Group

(8)
(8)
(8)

2011
2011
S$
S$
1,078
1,0781,0781,078
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20.
Income tax (benefit)/expense (continued)
Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
The reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting loss
multiplied
by the between
applicable
tax the
rate product
for theofyears
endedloss
31
The
reconciliation
taxcorporate
expense and
accounting
December by
2012
andapplicable
2011 are: corporate tax rate for the years ended 31
multiplied
the
December 2012 and 2011 are:
Group
Group
2012
2011
2012
2011
S$
S$
S$
S$
Loss before tax
(151,599)
(179,143)
Loss
before
tax
(151,599)
(179,143)
Tax at 17%
(25,772)
(30,454)
Tax
at 17%
(25,772)
(30,454)
Non-allowable
items
25,947
34,310
Non-allowable
25,947
34,310
Exempt incomeitems
(921)
(2,778)
Exempt
(921)
(2,778)
Deferredincome
tax assets not recognised
1,053
Deferred
tax assets
not
recognised
1,053
Overprovision
in prior
year
(8)
Overprovision
in
prior
year
(8)
Others
(307)
Others
(307)
(8)
1,078(8)
1,078
21.
21.

Related party transactions
Related party transactions
In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the
financial
statements,
the following
transactions
the in
Group
In addition
to the related
party significant
information
disclosed between
elsewhere
the
and
related
parties
took
place
at
terms
agreed
between
the
parties
during
the
financial statements, the following significant transactions between the Group
financial
year:
and
related
parties took place at terms agreed between the parties during the
financial year:
2012
2012
S$
S$

Group
Group 2011
2011
S$
S$

Management fee
from subsidiaries
Management
fee
Management
fee
from subsidiaries
from an associate
17,400
14,400
Management
fee
from an associate
17,400
14,400
Key management compensation
Key management compensation
Key management’s compensation is disclosed in the note 18.
Key management’s compensation is disclosed in the note 18.
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Co-operative
2012Co-operative
2011
2012
2011
S$
S$
S$
S$
24,000
24,000
17,400
17,400

26,500
26,500
14,400
14,400
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22.
Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group and the Co-operative is exposed to financial risks such as credit
risk, Group
liquidityand
riskthe
and
foreign currency
risk. The
board reviews
andasagrees
The
Co-operative
is exposed
to financial
risks such
credit
policies
for managing
of these
risksrisk.
andThe
theyboard
are summarised
It
risk,
liquidity
risk and each
foreign
currency
reviews andbelow.
agrees
does notfor
hold
derivative
financial
instruments
trading
purposes. below. It
policies
managing
each
of these
risks andfor
they
are summarised
does not hold derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s and Cooperative’s
exposure
the above-mentioned
risks and
and Cothe
The following
sectionstoprovide
details regardingfinancial
the Group’s
objectives, policies
and processes
for the management
of these
risks.and the
operative’s
exposure
to the above-mentioned
financial
risks
objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks.
Credit risk
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial
instruments
counterparty
default
on its
obligations.
The Group’s
and
Credit
risk should
is the arisk
of loss that
may
arise
on outstanding
financial
the Co-operative’s
to credit
risk
primarilyThe
fromGroup’s
trade and
instruments
should aexposure
counterparty
default
onarises
its obligations.
otherCo-operative’s
receivables. exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and
the
other receivables.
For other financial assets (including other investment, cash and cash
equivalents),
the Group
and the
Co-operative
creditcash
risk by
For
other financial
assets
(including
other minimise
investment,
anddealing
cash
exclusively with
credit
rating
counterparties.
equivalents),
thehigh
Group
and
the Co-operative
minimise credit risk by dealing
exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.
The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimizing
losses
incurred
due to increased
risk exposure.
The Group
only
The
Group’s
objective
is to seek credit
continual
revenue growth
while trades
minimizing
with recognised
andto creditworthy
parties.
It is the Group’s
policy
thatonly
all
losses
incurred due
increased credit
risk exposure.
The Group
trades
customers
who wish
trade on credit
termsItare
to credit
verification.
with
recognised
andtocreditworthy
parties.
is subject
the Group’s
policy
that all
In addition,who
receivable
are monitored
an ongoing
basis
with the
customers
wish to balances
trade on credit
terms areonsubject
to credit
verification.
result
that
the
Group’s
exposure
to
bad
debts
is
not
significant.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the
result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
At the end of the reporting period, approximately 95% (2011: 92%) of the
Group’s
trade
were
due from
1 major customer
who 92%)
is located
in
At
the end
of receivables
the reporting
period,
approximately
95% (2011:
of the
Singapore.
Group’s
trade receivables were due from 1 major customer who is located in
Singapore.
Financial assets that are past due or impaired
Financial assets that are past due or impaired
Information regarding financial assets that are past due or impaired is
disclosed in Note
8.
Information
regarding
financial assets that are past due or impaired is
disclosed in Note 8.
Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk
The Group’s foreign currency risk results mainly from cash flows and
transactions
in foreign
The
Group’sdenominated
foreign currency
riskcurrencies.
results mainly from cash flows and
transactions denominated in foreign currencies.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency
Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s loss net of tax to
reasonably
possible
changes in the
foreign
exchange
rates
The
following
table demonstrates
thefollowing
sensitivity
of thecurrencies
Group’s loss
net of tax
to
against the possible
functional
currencies
of following
the Group
entities,
with all exchange
other variables
reasonably
changes
in the
foreign
currencies
rates
held constant.
against
the functional currencies of the Group entities, with all other variables
held constant.
2012
2011
Loss
after
Loss
after
2012
2011
tax
tax
Loss
after
Loss
after
tax
tax
S$
S$
S$
S$
USD/SGD
USD/SGD
- strengthened 2% (2011: 8%)
4,436
8,968
- strengthened
(2011:
4,436
8,968
weakened 2%2%
(2011:
8%)8%)
(4,436)
(8,968)
-BRL/SGD
weakened 2% (2011: 8%)
(4,436)
(8,968)
BRL/SGD
- strengthened 8% (2011: 13%)
15,677
25,659
- strengthened
(2011:
13%)
15,677
25,659
weakened 8%8%
(2011:
13%)
(15,677)
(25,659)
-AUD/SGD
weakened 8% (2011: 13%)
(15,677)
(25,659)
AUD/SGD
- strengthened 2% (2011: NIL)
6,632
N/A
- strengthened
(2011:
NIL)
6,632
N/A
weakened 2%2%
(2011:
NIL)
(6,632)
- weakened 2% (2011: NIL)
(6,632)
N/A
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or the Co-operative will encounter
difficulty risk
in meeting
financial
obligations
shortage of
The
Liquidity
is the risk
that the
Group or due
the to
Co-operative
willfunds.
encounter
Group’s
and
the
Co-operative’s
exposure
to
liquidity
risk
arises
primarily
from
difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The
mismatches
maturities ofexposure
financial to
assets
andrisk
liabilities.
The Group’s
Group’s and of
thethe
Co-operative’s
liquidity
arises primarily
from
and the Co-operative’s
objective
is to maintain
a balance
between
mismatches
of the maturities
of financial
assets
and liabilities.
Thecontinuity
Group’s
of
funding
and flexibility objective
through its
and
the Co-operative’s
is operation.
to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through its operation.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial
assets
andbelow
liabilities
at the endthe
of maturity
the reporting
based
on contractual
The
table
summarises
profileyear
of the
Group's
financial
undiscounted
repayment
obligations.
assets
and liabilities
at the
end of the reporting year based on contractual
More than
undiscounted repayment obligations.
one year
More
than
but less
one
year
On
Less than
than
five
but less
demand
one year
years
Total
On
Less
than
than
five
demand
oneS$
year
years
Total
S$
S$
S$
S$
S$
S$
S$
Group
Group
31 December 2012
31
December
2012
Financial
assets:
Financial
assets:
Other investments
8,093,879
8,093,879
Trade investments
and other
Other
8,093,879
8,093,879
receivables
315,975
315,975
Trade
and other
Cash
and cash
receivables
315,975
315,975
equivalents
1,742,558
1,742,558
Cash and cash
equivalents
1,742,558
1,742,558
Total
undiscounted
Total
undiscounted
financial assets
1,742,558
315,975
8,093,879
10,152,412
financial assets
1,742,558
315,975
8,093,879
10,152,412
Financial
liabilities:
Financial
Trade and other
liabilities:
payables
137,984
137,984
Trade
and other
payables
137,984
137,984
Total
undiscounted
financial
Total undiscounted
liabilities
137,984
137,984
financial
liabilities
137,984
137,984
Net undiscounted
Netfinancial
undiscounted
assets
1,742,558
177,991
8,093,879
10,014,428
financial assets
1,742,558
177,991
8,093,879
10,014,428
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
More than
one year
More
than
but less
one
year
On
Less than
than
five
but less
demand
one year
years
On
Less
than
than
five
demand
oneS$
year
years
S$
S$
S$
S$
S$
Group
Group
At 31 December 2011
At
31 December
Financial
assets:2011
Other investments
7,367,334
Financial
assets:
Trade investments
and other
Other
7,367,334
receivables
309,615
Trade
and other
Cash
and
cash
receivables
309,615
equivalents
2,118,347
Cash
and cash
equivalents
2,118,347
Total
undiscounted
financial
assets
2,118,347
309,615
7,367,334
Total
undiscounted
financial assets
2,118,347
309,615
7,367,334
Financial
liabilities:
Financial
Trade and other
liabilities:
payables
102,955
Trade
and other
payables
102,955
Total undiscounted
financial
Total
undiscounted
liabilities
102,955
financial
liabilities
102,955
Net undiscounted
Netfinancial
undiscounted
assets
2,118,347
206,660
7,367,334
financial assets
2,118,347
206,660
7,367,334
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Total
Total
S$
S$

7,367,334
7,367,334
309,615
309,615
2,118,347
2,118,347
9,795,296
9,795,296

102,955
102,955
102,955
102,955
9,692,341
9,692,341
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22.
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Co-operative
Co-operative
At 31 December 2012
At
31 December
Financial
assets:2012
Financial
assets:
Other investments
Other
Trade investments
and other
Trade
and other
receivables
receivables
Cash
and cash
Cash
and cash
equivalents
equivalents
Total
undiscounted
Total
undiscounted
financial
assets
financial assets
Financial liabilities:
Financial
Trade and liabilities:
other
Trade
and other
payables
payables
Total
undiscounted
financial
Total
undiscounted
liabilities
financial
liabilities
Net undiscounted
Netfinancial
undiscounted
assets/
financial
(liabilities)assets/
(liabilities)

On
demand
On
demand
S$
S$

Less than
one year
Less
than
one
S$year
S$

More than
one
year
but
More
than
less
five
one than
year but
years
less than five
years
S$
S$

Total
Total
S$
S$

1,355,650
1,355,650
1,355,650
1,355,650

24,650
24,650
24,650
24,650

8,093,879
8,093,879
8,093,879
8,093,879

8,093,879
8,093,879
24,650
24,650
1,355,650
1,355,650
9,474,179
9,474,179

-

100,990
100,990

-

100,990
100,990

-

100,990
100,990

-

100,990
100,990

8,093,879
8,093,879

9,373,189
9,373,189

1,355,650
1,355,650

(76,340)
(76,340)
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
More than
one
year
but
More
than
On
Less than
less
five
one than
year but
demand
one
year
years
Total
On
Less than
less than five
demand
one
years
Total
S$
S$year
S$
S$
S$
S$
S$
S$
Co-operative
Co-operative
At 31 December 2011
At
31 December
Financial
assets:2011
Financial
assets:
Other investments
7,367,334
7,367,334
Other
7,367,334
7,367,334
Trade investments
and other
Trade
and other
receivables
55,126
55,126
receivables
55,126
55,126
Cash
and cash
Cash
and cash
equivalents
1,788,466
1,788,466
equivalents
1,788,466
1,788,466
Total
undiscounted
Total
undiscounted
financial
assets
1,788,466
55,126
7,367,334
9,210,926
financial assets
1,788,466
55,126
7,367,334
9,210,926
Financial
liabilities:
Financial
liabilities:
Trade and other
Trade
and other
payables
176,981
176,981
payables
176,981
176,981
Total undiscounted
financial
Total
undiscounted
liabilities
176,981
176,981
financial
liabilities
176,981
176,981
Total net
undiscounted
Total net
undiscounted
financial assets/
financial
(liabilities)assets/
1,788,466
(121,855)
7,367,334
9,033,945
(liabilities)
1,788,466
(121,855)
7,367,334
9,033,945
Fair values
Fair values
(i) Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried out at
fair value
whose carrying
amounts
are reasonable
approximation
(i) Fair
valueand
of financial
instruments
by classes
that are not
carried out of
at
fair value.
value and whose carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of
fair value.
The carrying amount of financial assets, except other investment, and
financial
liabilities
are reasonable
of fair
values
due to their
The
carrying
amount
of financial approximate
assets, except
other
investment,
and
short-termliabilities
nature. are reasonable approximate of fair values due to their
financial
short-term nature.
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22. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Fair values (continued)
Fair values (continued)
(ii) Fair value of financial instruments that are carried at fair value
(ii) Fair value of financial instruments that are carried at fair value
The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments carried at
valuefollowing
by level of
fair shows
value hierarchy:
The
table
an analysis of financial instruments carried at
value by level of fair value hierarchy:
Quoted
prices
in
Quoted
activein
Significant
Significant
prices
markets
other
other
activefor
Significant
Significant
identical
observable
unobservable
markets
for
other
other
instruments
inputs
inputs
identical
observable
unobservable
Level 1
Level
Level
instruments
inputs2
inputs3
Level
1
Level
2
Level
S$
S$
S$ 3
S$
S$
S$
31 December 2012
Available-for-sale
31
December 2012
financial assets
Available-for-sale
-Quoted
bonds
8,043,879
financial
assets
-Quoted bonds
8,043,879
and securities
8,043,879
8,043,879
8,043,879
31 December 2011
Available-for-sale
31
December 2011
financial assets
Available-for-sale
-Quoted
bonds
financial
assets
-Quoted bonds
and securities

7,317,334
7,317,334
7,317,334
7,317,334
7,317,334

-

-

fair
fair

Total
Total
S$
S$

8,043,879
8,043,879
8,043,879
8,043,879
8,043,879

7,317,334
7,317,334
7,317,334
7,317,334
7,317,334

Fair value hierarchy
Fair value hierarchy
The Group classifies fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that
reflects
the classifies
significance
the inputs
used in making
The
Group
fairofvalue
measurement
using a the
fair measurements.
value hierarchy The
that
fair
value
hierarchy
has
the
following
levels:
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The
fair value hierarchy has the following levels:
 Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities
 Level 1 – Quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
 Level 2 – or
Inputs
other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
liabilities
the quoted
asset orprices
liability,
either directly
or indirectly
 Level 2 – observable
Inputs otherfor
than
included
within Level
1 that are
 Level 3 – observable
Inputs for the
or liability
that either
are notdirectly
basedoronindirectly
observable
for asset
the asset
or liability,
data
inputs)
 Level 3 – market
Inputs for
the(unobservable
asset or liability
that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs)
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Fair values (continued)
Fair values (continued)
(ii) Fair value of financial instruments that are carried at fair value
(ii) (continued)
Fair value of financial instruments that are carried at fair value
(continued)
Determination of fair value
Determination of fair value
Quoted debt and equity instruments: Fair value is determined by direct
referencedebt
to their
priceinstruments:
quotations inFair
an active
at the end
the
Quoted
and bid
equity
value market
is determined
by of
direct
reporting period.
reference
to their bid price quotations in an active market at the end of the
reporting period.
(iii) Fair value of financial instrument by classes that are not carried at fair
valuevalue
and whose
carrying
amountsby
are
not reasonable
approximation
of
(iii) Fair
of financial
instrument
classes
that are not
carried at fair
fair value
value
and whose carrying amounts are not reasonable approximation of
fair value
Fair value information has not been disclosed for the Group’s investments in
equity
instruments
amounted
$50,000
that are
at cost
because fair
Fair
value
information
has nottobeen
disclosed
for carried
the Group’s
investments
in
value cannot
be measured
reliably.
The Group
does
not intend
disposefair
of
equity
instruments
amounted
to $50,000
that are
carried
at cost to
because
this investment
the foreseeable
future.
value
cannot beinmeasured
reliably.
The Group does not intend to dispose of
this investment in the foreseeable future.
Capital management
Capital management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s
abilityGroup’s
to continue
as awhen
goingmanaging
concern capital
and toare
maintain
an optimal
capital
The
objectives
to safeguard
the Group’s
structure
so
as
to
maximize
members'
value.
In
order
to
maintain
or
achieve
ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital
an optimal
structure, members'
the Groupvalue.
may In
adjust
amount of
structure
socapital
as to maximize
orderthe
to maintain
or dividend
achieve
payment,
capital
to members
or issue
shares.
an
optimalreturn
capital
structure,
the Group
maynew
adjust
the amount of dividend
payment, return capital to members or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes during the
yearchanges
ended 31
December
2011. policies and processes during the
No
were
made in2012
the and
objectives,
year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.
The Group is not subjected to externally imposed capital requirements.
The Group is not subjected to externally imposed capital requirements.
23.
23.
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Commitments
Commitments
Operating lease commitments – as lessee
Operating lease commitments – as lessee
As at balance sheet date, the Group was committed to making the following
payments
in respect
non-cancellable
operating
leases
with a term:
As
at balance
sheet of
date,
the Group was
committed
to making
the following
payments in respect of non-cancellable operating leases with a term:
Group and Co-operative
Group and Co-operative
2012
2011
2012
2011
S$
S$
S$
S$
Not later than one year
3,120
3,120
Not
later
than
3,120
3,120
More
than
oneone
yearyear
8,119
11,239
More than one year
8,119
11,239
11,239
14,359
11,239
14,359

Industrial And Services Co-Operative Society Limited And Its Subsidiaries
24.

Authorisation of financial statements for issue
The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2012
were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on the date of the
Statement by Directors.
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ISCOS is a member of the Community Action for the Rehabilitation of Ex-offenders (CARE) Network,
which organises the annual Yellow Ribbon Project.
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